
LONDON COUNCILS JOINT COMMITTEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015



LONDON COUNCILS - JOINT COMMITTEE

Contents
Page

Review of the year 1-19

Explanatory Foreword to the Statement of Accounts 20-24

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 25

Approval Certificate 26

Annual Governance Statement 27-32

Independent Auditors’ Report 33-36

Consolidated Movement in Reserves Statement 37-38

Consolidated Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 39

Consolidated Balance Sheet 40

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 41

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts 42-72

Appendices 73-76

Glossary 77-8 1



LONDON COUNCILS — JOINT COMMITTEE Page 1

REVIEW OF THE YEAR

About London Councils

London Councils represents London’s 32 borough councils and the City of London.

It is a cross-party organisation that works on behalf of all of its member authorities regardless of political
persuasion.

London Councils makes the case to government, the Mayor and others to get the best deal for Londoners
and to ensure that our member authorities have the resources, freedoms and powers to do the best
possible job for their residents and local businesses.

London Councils runs a number of direct services for member authorities including the Freedom Pass,
Taxicard and Health Emergency Badge. It also runs an independent parking appeals service and a pan-
London grants programme for voluntary organisations.

London Councils acts as a catalyst for effective sharing among boroughs — be that ideas, good practice,
people, resources, or policies and new approaches.

The strategic direction of London Councils is set by the Leaders’ Committee, which comprises the Leaders
and directly elected Mayors of all of London’s local authorities. There is also a cross-party Executive, which
guides the organisation’s day-to-day work.

Adding value for London’s boroughs

London Councils acts as host for a number of bodies which add value to the work of our member
authorities by helping them co-ordinate their work with pan-London organisations. These include:

London Safeguarding Children Board, representing London’s councils in a broader partnership with
police, health and other partners to promote child safeguarding across London.

London Young People’s Education and Skills (YPES) Board — the lead strategic body for 14-19
education and training in the capital.

London Councils is the Regional Employers’ body for London local authorities. Boroughs are members
of the Greater London Employment Forum and are represented on the Greater London Provincial Council
for the purposes of negotiations with trades unions.

Capital Ambition, London’s improvement and efficiency partnership.

London European Partnership for Transport, which provides the London boroughs with support and
access to European funding for transport projects.

London Councils also provides a key interface between boroughs, the London Fire Brigade, the Greater
London Authority (GLA) and the other emergency services on issues around city management and
resilience.

Advancing London local government

Member authorities have their own relationships with pan-London organisations and in particular with the
Mayor and the GLA. There are, however, a range of issues where the Mayor, the GLA and other pan-
London organisations seek to establish negotiation or dialogue with London’s boroughs. On these issues,
London Councils acts as the focal point for representing borough interests — informed by the political and
professional networks that we run. We then ensure that information is shared and disseminated quickly with
member boroughs.
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REVIEW OF THE YEAR (continued)

To ensure that our member authorities have influence in the decisions made at pan-London level that
impact on them and the communities they serve, London Councils has developed a series of shared
governance arrangements with the Mayor, Transport for London (TfL), Metropolitan Police, health and other

partners, including London business organisations. London Councils nominates — on a cross party basis —

members to serve in such shared governance arrangements, including the:

• London Crime Reduction Board
• London Enterprise Partnership
• London Health Board
• London Housing Board
• London Waste and Recycling Board

Some of these have statutory underpinning. The overall progress of these is monitored jointly by the Mayor

and borough leaders.

London Councils, in conjunction with the Mayor and key health partners, was instrumental in the
establishment of the London Health Board (LHB). The LHB’s role is to provide leadership on health issues
of pan-London significance, where this adds value to decisions, agreements and action at local level. It will

make the case for appropriate resourcing of the London health economy, ensuring that the importance of
London’s health, and its medical research centres, to the national economy is fully recognised.

More recently, London Councils played a central role in negotiations to develop a Growth Deal for London

as part of our overall programme to pursue opportunities for financial and wider devolution to London.

In addition, London Councils ensures that the London local government perspective is part of policy

development at national level by, for example, organising a full set of ministerial meetings and senior official

discussions, and also by promoting ideas and policies at each of the party conferences.

Devolution and Public Service Reform

London local government has proved its ability to face up to the challenge of public finance austerity,
managing the largest reduction in public funding while protecting frontline services to communities and

individuals.

But with public finance austerity set to continue and demand for services from both a growing and an aging

population rising significantly, London Councils believes that only a radical reform of public services — one
that focuses on integrated, preventative services that avoid the high costs of failure — can address the scale

of challenges ahead.

London boroughs have already begun to explore the initiatives that show the potential for more effective

ways of delivering outcomes for residents and the role local authorities can play in bringing other public

agencies together to tackle deep-rooted challenges. But London Councils believes central government now

needs to go much further to help enable reform of public services and greater local autonomy that can be a

springboard for a sustainable future.

To this end London Councils has continued to highlight the strong London argument for boroughs, groups

of boroughs and the Mayor to be at the heart of commissioning a broader range of integrated local public

services. In 2014/15 this work included:

Growth Deal

• Brokered the inclusion of a devolution proposition within the London Growth Deal, working with the

GLA and the London Enterprise Panel (LEP). Key components within the London Growth Deal

were:
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REVIEW OF THE YEAR (continued)

a. a series of employment pilots that have the potential to demonstrate the effectiveness of local
integrated delivery.

b. the inclusion of promised progressive steps to unlock devolution’.
c. preliminary steps to developing London influence over skills commissioning.

• Initiated discussions with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) to help shape the
successor to the Work Programme new programme.

London Proposition

• Secured agreement with the Mayor of London to a joint approach to Government, proposing talks
on the scope of London devolution and public service reform agreement.

• Worked closely with chief executives, boroughs and groups of boroughs to marshal evidence and to
build up capacity to deliver on the proposals.

• Initiated discussions with the GLA on potential governance models for newly devolved functions
(building on existing mechanisms).

The Broader Case for Devolution

• Delivered a range of publications, briefings and events supporting the case for devolution to
London, including party conference publication and events and a detailed report on the potential to
expand the Troubled Families approach to complex dependency.

• Ensured that the RSA City Growth Commission took account of the unique London governance
arrangements and the need for devolution below the GLA to boroughs and borough groupings

• Made the case for fiscal devolution, working with the Mayor of London and Core Cities.

Resources

An essential core of London Councils’ work is to ensure our member boroughs have the resources to
deliver and improve services for Londoners and maintain the environment and the places where our
communities live. We make the case for London local government in terms of both specific funding streams
and its overall resource base. In 2014/15 this work included:

The Care Act

Social care costs are set to account for almost 60 per cent of borough spending by 2019. London Councils
was the first to develop a model of financial costs of the Care Act. The model has been influential, leading
to changes in financial forecasts of government and others. The model has been used to highlight a new
burdens funding pressure in London of £85 million in 2015/16 and further new burdens of at least £738
million between 201 6/17 and 2019/20.

This work has been critical in getting the Department of Health to recognise that its current allocations for
London are not sufficient — and resulted in the department redistributing the funds available for
implementation of the Care Act in 2015/16. The government increased its funding for carers and committed
to on-going funding for them. The extension of carers’ tights is expected to result in £36.5 million increased
costs in 2015/16.

Overall the redistributive changes resulted in an increase for London of just over £1.3 million.
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REVIEW OF THE YEAR (continued)

HRA Borrowing Cap

London Councils and others made a sustained case to government that the artificial cap on boroughs’

borrowing against their Housing Revenue Accounts (HRAs) placed a fiscally unnecessary block on building

more of the new affordable homes London needs. Following extensive work by London Councils the

government announced a £300 million increase in HRA borrowing capacity. Nine London boroughs have

recently been awarded £63 million of the £123 million announced nationally to date.

School Places

We have successfully lobbied for funding for additional school places in London. London Councils’ work

has been recognised nationally as helping divert a significant amount of additional resources towards the

capital for this most pressing of problems. London’s share of the capital funding allocations has risen from

26 per cent in 2011 to an overall share of 33 per cent across the period up to 2017-18. This has meant an

additional £520 million for London schools.

Welfare reform

Following efforts by London Councils and individual boroughs, the government reconsidered its decision to

end funding for local welfare provision and has provided an additional £74 million, of which £14 million finds

its way to London.

Arguments made by London Councils and individual boroughs were successful in securing a second year’s

targeted uplift to Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rates in London, (higher than the standard one per cent).

Services for 0-5 year-olds

London Councils was successful in helping secure an additional £5.4 million in funding for 0-5 year-olds in

London as part of the health visiting transfer due to take place in 2015.

London Councils’ operational and service review

In addition to securing the best possible resources for our members, London Councils has been engaged in

thorough review of all the services and operations it provides to deliver the maximum possible savings to

member boroughs. Savings in 2014/1 5, compared to the 2010/11 budget, excluding grants payments and

grants administration, totalled £5.102 million.

Economic development

Boroughs play a vital role to play in creating the environment and infrastructures necessary for local

economies to thrive, including promoting the employment of residents and the prosperity of their

communities. Policy priorities for London Councils in 2013/14 included:

• improving the effectiveness of employment programmes in London

• improving the skills system for the capital’s employers and residents

• driving local economic growth through high streets and town centres and supporting boroughs to

develop infrastructure projects to generate economic growth.

In 2014/15 we completed the following work on behalf of member boroughs:

Devolution (employment and skills)

• Developed and submitted proposals to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) for how co

commissioning of mainstream employment programmes with London local government should work.
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• Contributed to the development of further devolution proposals around employment and skills,
working with boroughs and the GLA.

• Supported further development of the Growth Deal pilots to establish a sound evidence base for
devolution of employment support.

• Published qualitative research on how to improve employment support for Londoners with complex
needs, to inform our devolution work.

• Working with London boroughs developed detailed proposals to inform European Social Fund (ESF)
specifications for adult skills, families, in-work progression and business start-up/self-employment
worth over £75 million.

• Developed proposals for better joint working between Jobcentre Plus and London boroughs.

• Held a successful London Borough Apprenticeship Awards, highlighting boroughs’ work in this area.
Boroughs continue to deliver a year-on-year increase in the number of apprenticeships created
directly or through their supply chain.

Pan-London and local economic growth

• Secured agreement from the London Enterprise Panel (LEP) for a £70 million package of proposals
to drive economic growth in London, funded through the New Homes Bonus (NHB) topslice and to
be delivered by all London boroughs. London Councils negotiated that the programme was co
designed jointly between London boroughs and the GLA. All funding contributed to the NHB
topslice by each borough will be returned to those communities. The programme should create
more than 800 jobs, place more than 6,000 Londoners into work and generate mote than 2,000
apprenticeship opportunities. It should support over 6,000 businesses and create or improve
180,000 sqm of workspace/commercial space.

• Ran a campaign to lobby for changes to planning Use Class Orders, specifically around dealing with
clusters of betting shops and succeeded in influencing government to amend planning Use Class
Orders accordingly;

• Held and promoted the Small Business Friendly Borough awards in London with the FSB to
recognise excellence and raise the profile of boroughs’ work.

Culture

London Councils recognises the important role culture and sport plays in both sustaining London’s local
economies and in making our localities places where people want to live, work and visit. Our work in
support of culture and sport in the capital in 2014/15 included:

• Publishing two reports highlighting London’s local government’s wider support for arts and culture
across a range of council services and its impact on the sectors.

• Working with London Sport and its new senior leadership to influence the organisation’s new
strategy for sport and its proposed operating model, including how it will work with London
boroughs.

• Making the case against the proposed ‘rebalancing’ of Arts Council funding away from London,
including submitting evidence to the Culture, Media and Sport Select Committee inquiry.
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REVIEW OF THE YEAR (continued)

• Supporting the formation of the London Archives Partnership, a new pan-London partnership of
archive and local studies services designed to deliver efficiency savings and improve services.

• We worked with boroughs to help mark the 50th anniversary of the creation of the London
boroughs. This included branding to be used across publicity for anniversary activities, a microsite
of images from borough archives from 1965 to today and a political almanac with interactive maps

and data on London’s local elections over the past 50 years. London Councils also commissioned
LSE Professor Tony Travers to deliver a lecture on 50 years of the London boroughs to around 300
leading figures from across London government, including borough leaders past and present,
London Mayor Boris Johnson and Secretary of State for Local Government and Communities the Rt

Hon Greg Clark MP. The lecture is available to download as a booklet and an audio file from the
London Councils 50th anniversary site: boroughs5O.londoncouncils.gov.uk.

Children’s services and schools

Our children and young people team co-ordinates policy work and represents the interests of boroughs on

a pan-London basis relating to all aspects children’s services. They work closely with groups such as the

Association of London Directors of Children’s Services (ALDCS) on a broad range of issues relating to

children, young people and their families. Key areas of work in these areas in 2014/15 included:

• Successfully lobbying the Department for Education (DfE) to provide additional payments to local
authorities that built new primary schools, or whole primary school expansions, in 2013/1 4. London
secured £29 million.

• Securing agreement from Leaders’ Committee to develop pan-London policies to address the
challenges of affordability, availability and quality of childcare that parents are tackling.

• Commissioning and publishing a series of insight essays examining the role of London boroughs in

the London Challenge to inform the role boroughs can play to continue support the rise in
standards.

• Commissioning and publicising a YouGov attitudinal survey that provided tangible evidence of the

high levels of support among London parents for a local government role in ensuring standards in all

schools, including academies and free schools.

• Overseeing the refreshing of the London Safeguarding Children’s Board procedures.

• Supporting ALDCS prepare for the new Ofsted inspection of local authority arrangements for
supporting school improvement.

• Continuing to promote ideas and best practice to improve child protection in the capital through the
London Safeguarding Children Award (won in 2014 by Empower’, a project set up by youth safety
charity Safer London Foundation, which helps girls and young women at risk of sexual exploitation

from gangs in London)

• Supporting all boroughs to prepare for the transition of health visiting and Family Nurse Partnership

commissioning.

• Securing £5.4 million additional funding for under 5s in London through the health visiting transfer.

• Lobbying the Department of Health (DoH) for a fairer needs-based funding methodology for the 0-5

year-old public health from 2016/1 7.
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YPES

The Young People’s Education and Skills (YPES) Board is the lead strategic body for 14-19 education and
training services in London. It provides pan-London leadership for 14-19 education and training provision in
relation to the current and future needs of learners and employers, supports local authorities in undertaking
their statutory functions, and assists other stakeholders in planning, policy and provision.

The YPES works for London’s boroughs and exists to guide and support them in developing their local
commissioning plans in tune with regional priorities. The YPES Board brings together key stakeholders
from across London to help set the region’s priorities to influence and shape the education provision on
offer to young people. A small YPES staff resource is based in London Councils to support the work
generated by the Board. In 2014/15 the team worked to further four key priorities:

• Business and Education — London’s education and learning institutions and the business community
should work better together to enable more young people to succeed.

• Careers Guidance — Young people should expect to exercise informed choices about their options,
progress and reach their potential.

• Better Support to Young People at 17 and 19 - Young people need to be better prepared, especially
at 17 and 19, for progression to further and higher education and employment.

• Working Together — Stakeholders should work collaboratively in the interests of young people.

Achievements in 2014/15 included:

Shaping the high level priorities for the future £129 million ESF Youth Programme (the Youth Employment
Initiative) ensuring the views of London’s local authorities were strongly influential.

Supporting local authorities to increase the participation of 16 and 17 year-olds to over 90 per cent and
significantly reduce the numbers of young people not engaged in education, employment or training
(NEET), through regular monitoring and good-practice sharing events on participation.

Leading and developing a programme of activity for local authorities and partners to implement ambitious
reforms for young people with special educational needs and disabilities, including highlighting the need for
more employers to change their recruitment practices through a highly successful media and pledge
campaign.

Effectively lobbying for improvements to careers guidance for young people, the protection of funding for
full-time 18 year-old students and increases to the Dedicated Schools Grant for high needs students.

Health and adult care

London’s boroughs have longstanding responsibilities for adult social care that are facing significant
challenge from financial and demographic pressures and considerable change with the advent of the Care
Act 2014 and widened health responsibilities flowing from the Health and Social Care Act 2012. These
include new public health functions and responsibility for establishing Health and Wellbeing Boards.

Social care costs are set to account for almost 60 per cent of borough spending by 2019. London Councils
was the first to develop a model of financial costs of the Care Act. The model has been influential, leading
to changes in financial forecasts of government and others. The model has been used to highlight a new
burdens funding pressure in London of85 million in 2015/16 and further new burdens of at least £738
million between 201 6/17 and 2019/20.
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This work has been critical in getting the Department of Health (D0H) to recognise that its current

allocations for London are not sufficient — and resulted in the department redistributing the funds available

for implementation of the Care Act in 2015/16. The government increased its funding for carers and

committed to on-going funding for them. The extension of carers’ rights is expected to result in £36.5 million

increased costs in 2015/1 6.

London Councils successfully engaged in the regional process with NHS England for the assurance of draft

and final Better Care Fund plans, to ensure that local government perspectives and the needs of adult

social care were effectively taken into account. It has worked with NHS England and other partners to

support a London Health and Care Collaborative, bringing together practitioners to share best practice,

problem-solve and influence national policy to support local integration programmes. London Councils is

now making the case for the future of the Better Care Fund, to operate in a more streamlined way to

support local leadership of service changes.

The reforms of the NHS, the Care Act and the devolution of public health to local government created a

new health environment in London with significant opportunities and risks for the boroughs and their

localities. London Councils has responded with a range of activities, including the establishment of:

• a multi-partner steering group that oversaw the allocation regional health improvement funding from

the Department of Health/LGA. In 2014/15 £98,000 funding was used to support a London-wide

conference on strengthening Health & Wellbeing Boards and small grants to support local Board

development.

• the London Health Board with the GLA, NHS England (London Region), Clinical Commissioning

Groups (CCGs) and Public Health England on which five Leaders now sit ensuring the voice of the

boroughs is heard

• the London Health Chief Officers’ Group, to strengthen relationships with the NHS and influence

NHS programmes in London, which includes the regional directors of NHS England and Public

Health England and representatives of the CCGs

In September 2013, the Mayor of London launched an independent London Health Commission, chaired by

Lord Darzi. London Councils secured consideration of local government’s role and interests in the work of

the Commission. Following the publication of the report in October 2014, London Councils has worked with

other partners to refocus the London Health Board to provide more political leadership, including over the

implementation of the Commission’s recommendations, and to secure local government involvement in

NHS transformation programmes.

Policing and crime

Crime is a constant feature in any survey of Londoners’ prime concerns and London Councils aim is to

ensure that the interests of Londoners, and their councils, are fully recognised in policing, in the

development of community safety policies, and in the allocation of funding.

Our team works on a range of issues including, policing accountability, violence against women and girls,

anti-social behaviour, anti-violence and reducing re-offending.

The team also plays a key role in ensuring London is fully prepared for terrorist attacks or other major

emergencies in London. In 2014/15 we completed the following work on behalf of member boroughs.

• Led an initiative on Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) to tackle persistent challenges and develop shared

approaches to new ASE powers.
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• Made the case for embedding greater control and devolution of criminal justice budgets to London.

• Worked with MOPAC to influence the implementation of the Ministry of Justice’s Transforming
Rehabilitation reforms. This has included working to ensure the new probation provider’s operating
model reflects London’s priorities. At an operational level, we also sought to mitigate risk though the
transition to ‘Transforming Rehabilitation’ reforms.

• Supported boroughs delivering the Prevent Strategy in London and lobbied for borough interests in
the revised legal framework and guidance.

• Published a detailed analysis of the Troubled Families programme showing the potential for London
local government to integrate public services to deliver better outcomes. We hosted an event that
explored the factors behind the success of the programme in London and its potential to provide a
model for devolution where the benefits of integration and personalisation can be realised to
improve outcomes and cut costs.

Housing and planning

No-one now doubts that London faces a significant housing crisis and London Councils’ analysis has been
crucial in providing a comprehensive picture of the scale of both the existing and the projected housing
shortfall in the capital, which needs an additional 526,000 new homes by 2021 just to keep pace with
population growth.

London Councils has been at the forefront of highlighting London’s housing crisis and supporting boroughs
in managing the impact of the crisis. In 2014/15 year, London Councils has:

• Supported boroughs in agreeing a pan-London response to the problem of excessive costs for
nightly paid temporary accommodation, helping to mitigate budgetary pressures for local authorities
in tackling homelessness

• Advised and supported boroughs on housing investment issues, particularly around new
development through the HRA; influenced the Elphicke-House review in promoting role of boroughs
as key enablers of new housing

• Made the case to government to allow development management powers to remain in local hands,
including opposing Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) proposals on
extending permitted development rights

• Lobbied parliament to allow boroughs to retain powers to manage short-term residential
accommodation through the planning system. Government conceded that safeguards should be in
primary legislation

• Defended interests of boroughs in responding to the Mayor’s Further Alterations to the London Plan,
particularly in relation to housing delivery issues. Influenced Inspector’s conclusions on borough
planning responsibilities

• Worked closely with the Greater London Authority (GLA) on shaping the Housing Zones initiative
and supported boroughs on developing bids; co-hosted prospectus launch event

• Organised and hosted councillor event with GLA and London First on housing development issues
in London
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In public commentary and consultation responses, continued to make the case for stronger housing
delivery powers for boroughs, in particular lifting the HRA borrowing cap and ‘full cost recovery’ for
planning departments.

Transport and environment

London Councils works with boroughs and develops policy on a range of transport and environmental
challenges affecting the capital. London Councils’ work in this area is governed by our Transport and
Environment Committee (TEC), a statutory committee of councillors from the 33 London local authorities. In
2014/15 we completed the following work on behalf of member boroughs:

Transport and Environment

Resourcing London

• The final evaluation report of the Big London Energy Switch (BLES) project showed that residents
who switched using this scheme, saved on average £153 off their energy bill per annum. In addition,
BLES was the most successful scheme of its kind in the country in attracting vulnerable residents to
participate. Twenty three boroughs have continued to support further auctions using the BLES logo
and communications material and funding from the original DECC bid and revenue created from the
actual switches.

• Ensured that RE:NEW, the housing retrofit project led by the GLA has fuel poverty and accessing
external funding sources as a key priority of phase 3. The project now has a support team in place
after a successful funding bid to the European Investment Bank (EIB).

• Assisted interested boroughs to access funding for the Mini Holland fund provided by TfL. This
represents investment in cycling infrastructure of up to £90 million in the LB of Waltham Forest,
Kingston and Enfield.

• The Thames Regional Flood and Coastal Committee (TRFCC), to which TEC nominates seven
members, were successful in attracting an unprecedented six year £301 million settlement for the
Thames region. Upon receipt of a strong business case, Members voted in favour of a levy increase
of 1.99 pet cent in 2015/16 and principally for the next five years, which will bring the total
investment in flood defences in the Thames region to £376 million by 2020/21.

• The London Waste and Recycling Board (LWARB) to which London Councils nominates four
Members and 2 independent members, has established a new partnership with WRAP, “Resource
London”, which is overseen by a steering group formed of LWARB, LEDNET and CELC members.
This partnership will invest £2.25 million in London’s waste authorities to help with efficiencies,
maintaining high service standards and achieving the 50 per cent recycling target for London.

Supporting London delivery

• We continued to support the Drain London partnership of GLA, Thames Water, Environment
Agency and London Councils, jointly producing a London Drainage Action Plan, which will go out to
consultation in 2015.

• Worked with the London Waste and Recycling Board (LWARB) to ensure the challenges we
identified in our waste paper are taken on board within their borough support programme from 2015
onwards.
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• Jointly with the GLA called on government to work in partnership across all tiers of political
leadership to tackle the air pollution problem in London. We are now working with the GLA on a
bespoke Air Quality Management Plan for London.

• Consulted and agreed on a fixed penalty fine for anti-social spitting.

• Worked with the London Assembly to influence TfL to change the way in which TIL engages with
boroughs on buses in particular. This has resulted in TfL adopting a new approach to borough
engagement.

• Represented borough views at the TfL Road safety steering group and influenced the Pedestrian
and Cycling Safety Action Plans.

• London Councils together with TIL and GLA launched car club best practice guidance at the Car
Lite event in July 2014.

Securing Devolution and Localism

• Our briefings and engagement with peers was successful in raising our concerns about the
Deregulation Bill to the House of Lords that resulted in changes to the provisions within it for waste
collection arrangements in London.

Infrastructure

Supporting London Delivery

• We established ourselves as an influential voice in the infrastructure debate, working with the Mayor
on the London Infrastructure Plan 2050 during its various stages;

1. Contributed to its development
2. Formally responded to the draft plan
3. Providing formal representation on the London Infrastructure Delivery Board and any subsidiary

groupings, such as the Green Infrastructure Task Force and the Connectivity Advisory Group.

• We continued our important role to make community representations to the Airports Commission’s
consultations, based on the London Councils agreed set of parameters.

• We continued to influence Crossrail 1. Our sustained pressure to increase the positive economic
effects from the construction of Crossrail for more vulnerable residents and smaller and medium
sized businesses, have led to Crossrail’s supply chain to include 58 per cent SMEs. In addition,
Crossrail is on target to employ 400 apprenticeships and has been very successful in attracting
previously unemployed individuals.

• Our success around influencing Crossrail has put us in a strong position to doing the same with
Crossrail 2. We have been invited and attended appropriate forums and highlighting issues through
our networks and submitted responses to consultations.

• We played a key role in establishing a Car Club Coalition, representing car club operators, London
Councils, GLA, TIL and other key stakeholders.

• We created a draft car club strategy, currently out for consultation to all London boroughs.
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Our services

Alongside our policy work, London Councils runs a number of direct services for and on behalf of

Londoners and our member boroughs, where leaders have identified a clear benefit in these being

administered by London Councils.

Freedom Pass

The Freedom Pass provides free transport on almost all public transport in the capital to around 1 .3 million

older and disabled London residents. It is a much valued benefit that has been managed and paid for by

London boroughs since 1986.

During 2014/1 5, London Councils, borough officers, TfL, ATOC and Freedom Pass contractors oversaw the

renewal of around 950,000 older and disabled Freedom Pass holders; whose passes expired 31 March

2015.

By the 31 March 2015, more than 83 per cent of older pass holders had completed the renewal of their

Freedom Pass. For the first time pass holders could apply online and 74 per cent of those renewing did so,

which far exceeded London Councils’ target of 50 per cent. Boroughs also completed the reassessment of

disabled pass holders and all who remain eligible received their new pass in mid-March.

During the year planning also started for the introduction of a new online and postal application process for

older and disabled Freedom Pass applicants.

Taxicard

Taxicard provides subsidised travel in licensed taxis and Private Hire Vehicles (PHVs) to London residents

with severe mobility or visual impairments. The scheme is funded by the London boroughs and Transport

for London. It is administered on their behalf by London Councils, with CityFleet as the contractor providing

Computer Cab Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles.

As of August2014 all boroughs were serviced with PHVs. The implementation of PHVs were introduced to

improve the service and to ensure that users who are unable to access Black Taxis have an alternative

choice of vehicles. London Councils is constantly working with boroughs to streamline and improve the

efficiency of the service for both borough councils and users of the scheme.

The scheme is available 24-hours a day, 365 days a year and 79,000 members made 1.27 million trips in

2014/1 5.

LEPT

The London European Partnership for Transport (LEPT) helps to coordinate, disseminate and promote the

sustainable transport and mobility agenda for London and London boroughs in Europe. LEPT works with

the 33 London councils to build upon European knowledge and best practice, helping cities to work

together to deliver specific transport policies and initiatives, and providing better value to London.

One of LEPT’s main roles is to identify, bid for and manage EU transport and mobility projects involving

London boroughs which support their local priorities as well as fitting into the Mayor’s Transport Strategy.

London Councils’ LEPT team are currently delivering two European projects; STARS and PTP Cycle.

These projects aim to increase the amount of cycling by school children and in residential areas. Both are

now in the delivery stages. PTP-Cycle is now rolling out Personalised Travel Planning (PTP) programmes

across two wards in Haringey and Greenwich covering 10,000 households supporting the boroughs’ wider

smarter travel activities.
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LEPT has secured more than £4 million of European funding for London boroughs’ transport goals since
2006.

Health Emergency Badge

The Health Emergency Badge (HEB) scheme is for people involved in the delivery of primary healthcare
attending medical emergencies in patients’ homes. HEB ensures health professionals attending
emergencies in Londoners’ homes are not inadvertently penalised by parking restrictions. London Councils
administers HEB on behalf of all 33 London Councils, all London Boroughs have agreed to the scheme,
although it is not a mandatory provision and it is offered entirely at the discretion of London parking
authorities. In 2014/15 London Councils issued 2,046 badges across London.

London Lorry Control Scheme

Lorry deliveries are an essential part of London’s commerce but Londoners need to know that noise and
pollution on residential streets are kept to a minimum, particularly during unsocial hours. To ensure
residents are not kept awake by late night heavy good vehicles (HGV5), London Councils operates the
London Lorry Control Scheme that regulates the movement of HGVs at night and at weekends through a
system of permits. Enforcement of the scheme is carried out by a team who patrol London and target
specific locations where HGVs may be travelling at night or on weekends.

The scheme has been enforced for 30 years with over 3,600 hauliers registered for permissions, amounting
to approximately 62,000 vehicles registered to the scheme.

The administration of the scheme continues to prove year-on-year how important it is to residents living in
London. For the past two years no financial contributions have been requested from our representative
authorities, with this trend set to continue.

London Councils is looking at new technologies to enhance enforcement practice and further streamline
efficiencies to keep costs down.

London Safer Lorry Scheme

In response to the significant and disproportionate number of cyclist and pedestrian collisions involving
heavy goods vehicles (HGV5), London Councils together with TfL and Heathrow will be introducing a Safer
Lorry Scheme from 1 September 2015. All roads in Greater London are covered by the approved traffic
orders and require vehicles of more than 3.5 tonnes to be fitted with sideguards and class V and class VI
mirrors where appropriate. Six hundred warning signs on the boundary of Greater London are being
introduced, and targeted advertising of the scheme has commenced. Enforcement will be undertaken by
the Metropolitan Police, City of London Police and the Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency (DVSA).

CCTV

Towards the end of 2013 the government proposed and consulted on a series of parking reforms including
restrictions on the use of CCTV enforcement and the introduction of mandatory grace periods and
compensation for people if they lose at appeal. London Councils worked with boroughs to provide a
comprehensive response to the consultations explaining how some of the proposals will have significant
impacts on London authorities’ ability to manage their highways safely and efficiently. Following the
introduction of new parking regulations in April 2015, London Councils will continue to fight on behalf of
boroughs for a fair, balanced and consistent approach to parking enforcement, and continues to provide
detailed information, guidance and support to boroughs.
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Parking and Traffic Consultation

London Councils works closely with TfL and the boroughs to ensure consistency and fairness in all

enforcement activity across London. We periodically consult on, and set, the level of penalty for parking and

moving traffic contraventions. London Councils also provides guidance and runs innovative pilot schemes

and projects to deliver parking and highway enforcement in the fairest and simplest way. It convenes

borough officer forums in the areas of parking management, highways and traffic signals. These forums are

used to formulate policy and share best practice.

TRACE — towed vehicle tracing service

London Councils provides a central helpline service for motorists whose vehicle may have been towed

away. We can help if a vehicle is removed for illegal parking by any council in London. The helpline is open

24-hours a day, 365 days a year. TRACE will advise which pound the vehicle has been moved to and

provide information on the procedure for release. The service receives between 5000 and 6000 calls a

month and has consistently met its target that 95 per cent of calls be answered within 12 seconds.

Parking and Private Land Appeals (POPLA)

London Councils operates the Parking on Private Lane Appeals (POPLA) service under contract with the

British Parking Association (BPA). The contract ends on 1 October 2015.

Parking and Traffic Appeals Service: (PATAS)

The Parking and Traffic Appeals Service (PATAS) provides a free, independent adjudication service for

motorists to decide disputed parking and bus lane penalties issued by local authorities and TfL.

PATAS aims to provide a speedy, quality service that gives fair and impartial decisions, is easy to

understand, as informal as possible and efficient. PATAS has a team of Adjudicators who decide the

appeals and can direct the local authority involved to cancel the penalty.

Consultants to the former Lord Chancellor’s Department have described PATAS as ‘the most user focused

aspect of justice in the country’.

PATAS is administered by London Councils and is delivered, up until 02 July 2015, by Capita. Following a

rigorous tendering exercise in 2014, London Councils awarded the contract to help manage and deliver the

PATAS service to Northgate. The new contract will commence on 03 July 2015 with aims to enhance the

service with an online portal for appeals.

Grants Programme

London Councils runs a longstanding, pan-London grants scheme on behalf of all 33 London councils.

Through our grants programme we fund projects to address four pan-London priorities:

• Homelessness
• Sexual and Domestic Violence
• ESF tackling poverty through employment
• Providing support to London’s voluntary and community organisations

Our grants work is part-funded by the European Social Fund (ESF) programme - every pound the boroughs

contribute is matched by a pound of European Social Funding.
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In 2014-15, our grants programme:

• Commissioned eight voluntary organisations across the Capital to deliver much-needed support to
14,428 homeless people

• Commissioned eleven voluntary organisations to support 24,939 people who have experienced
sexual and domestic violence

• Commissioned six voluntary organisations to build the capacity and resilience of key parts of the
voluntary sector in London.

• Helped 1,286 disadvantaged people into sustained employment through job search training and
support targeted at people who have been out of work for long periods.

• Helped 900 people with hard-to-reach issues such as debt and social isolation towards the world of
work and in many cases into employment.

• London Councils’ ESF Programme was singled out for commendation by the Project Management
Committee (run by the DWP to manage overall ESF) as one of the best examples, particularly in
terms of job outcomes performance and meeting equality targets and one for others to learn from.

Care Services

London Care Services (LCS) works on behalf of 40 local authorities (31 London boroughs, the City of
London and 8 partner authorities), supporting them in their local commissioning of outstanding services for
looked after children (LAC) and young people.

London Care Services manages a single contract with providers of services for looked-after children.
Member councils can draw down services from these providers without having to renegotiate contract terms
and costs. This service eliminates wasteful bureaucracy by centralising the contracting work, while giving
councils the freedom they need to choose between contracted providers.

The work of LCS adds value to our member boroughs; contracting centrally removes the need for boroughs
to undertake the same checks on the same contracts and organisations. By representing 40 members, LCS
also offers a stronger bargaining position when negotiating costs with providers of services.

In 2014/15 we completed the following work on behalf of member boroughs:

• Effectively negotiated competitive prices for local authorities to spot purchase quality services for
LAC

• Re-contracted with 333 care service providers to deliver a managed market for London

• Vetted new services wanting to join the London Model Contract

• Provided a valued source of support, information sharing and best practice

• Continued to deliver www.londoncareplacements.gov.uk, a secure platform for information sharing

• Delivered the LCS Conference 2015, an event that brought together boroughs and the independent
sector to discuss the commissioning and procurement of services for LAC
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Capital Ambition

London Councils is home to the Capital Ambition programme that evolved from the regional improvement

and efficiency partnership. Between 2008 and 2013 the Capital Ambition grants programme invested £34

million in funding projects in all 33 London Councils to achieve £87 million of cashable savings. By 2016 the

programme is forecast to have delivered total savings of £356 million. This would take the programme

return on investment to an impressive 13:1.

Capital Ambition has evolved and with the austerity measures likely to continue for the foreseeable future,

maintaining the space and opportunity for councils to innovate is a valuable way to support public service

delivery.

A key strand of the current Capital Ambition activity is the London Ventures programme. Capital Ambition is

working in partnership with EY (formerly Ernst & Young) to deliver London Ventures. The partnership
involves EY acting as a strategic brokerage service bringing new and innovative ideas from the private and

third sectors to help meet some of the key challenges facing local government. London Councils’ role is in
advocating ventures, promoting emerging innovation and transformation opportunities amongst London’s

authorities.

The Capital Ambition Board has approved three generations of Ventures to date, which are now being

showcased to boroughs through workshops and presentations. Early momentum is now gathering with four

of the Ventures being implemented in 10 different boroughs in total. The Spacehive London Venture has

seen over £500,000 of additional investment in civic projects and spaces — much of this from citizens

themselves that have been inspired and empowered to act. Whilst implementing Oxygen Finance is set to

return £1.5 million to one local authority over the next five years, and implementing robotic automation is

already speeding up one local authority process by 7 times: as the programme grows so too will the
combined impact both in terms of direct savings and improved service delivery for Londoners.

London Self Improvement Board

Collaborative work between boroughs on self-improvement, mutual challenge and support goes back to the

founding of Capital Ambition, and in recent years has been directed by the London Self Improvement

Board, comprising a number of borough Chief Executives, senior chief officer representatives and
representatives of London Councils. The board liaises at a political level with the Chair of London Councils

Leaders’ Committee on key issues and with relevant political portfolio holders across London.

The board provides an overall coherence to London’s engagement with national improvement programmes

and also supports the work of chief officer groupings across London seeking to drive improvement. It

provides Leaders’ Committee and the Chief Executives London Committee (CELC) with advice on putting

robust tools and techniques in place to identify areas of key risk to performance across London local

government and triggering remedial action where appropriate

Concentrating on key risk areas; Adult Social Care, Children’s Social Services and the overall financial and

corporate health of individual authorities, the board has helped to develop, review and challenge a number

of tools for supporting self-improvement. The London Authority Performance Solution (LAPS) and Chief

Executive to Chief Executive (CE2CE) and Treasurer to Treasurer (T2T) peer challenge processes are part

of these developments. Recognising the importance of the sector demonstrating a consistent approach to

self-improvement and showing councils are open to identifying performance challenges and acting upon

them, both peer challenge processes in 2014/15 featured the highest number of participants taking part to

date.
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London Procurement Strategy Board

London currently spends more than £8 billion on goods and services through third parties. While on an
individual basis London Boroughs are making substantial savings on their local third party expenditure,
there is good evidence from work carried out under the governance of the London Procurement Strategy
Board (LPSB) that taking a broader approach can offer additional cross-cutting opportunities that would
otherwise be missed.

LPSB was formed to assess what opportunities exist to take a strategic view of third party spend across the
London boroughs to achieve savings and efficiencies.

A major component of the LPSB work is to locate procurement decision making at the right organisational
level — either devolved to individual councils, or aggregated at sub-regional (e.g. West London Alliance),
regional (i.e. the whole of London) or national level.

The LPSB has identified a number of categories of spending that could potentially be purchased cheaper
were councils to aggregate their requirements and buy them collectively, the outcomes of the collective
work has produced considerable benefits for London as set out below:

• ICT has now been taken on as a national project — Local Authority Software Applications framework
was implemented in 2014 and at the time of writing has a pipeline of £45 million, a national ICT
category strategy has been launched

• A successful pan-London project was undertaken to implement a wireless concession contract for
lampposts. 16 boroughs participated in the arrangement with 14 going on to sign contracts. This will
generate many millions of pound income for those boroughs over the 10 year concession contract.

• A second phase project involving the exploitation of rooftop assets could also generate significant
income and discussions are being held with a consultancy on the feasibility of this and the
opportunity it may provide.

Co-ordination of procurements of the LSPB over the next 1-2 years include:

• Sexual Health - a particular opportunity exists currently to take forward a significant procurement for
Sexual Health Services as part of the Public Health services that were transferred to local
authorities.

• Adults and Children’s — these are very large areas of expenditure and the LPSB recognises that
better engagement needs to be held with representatives from ALDACS and ADASS to identify how
best procurement activity could support the outcomes they need to deliver.

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2015/16

In 2015/16, London Councils needs to undertake its role against the backdrop of two significant challenges
facing our member authorities. They are:

• Supporting councils in their work to meet the challenges of significant further restrictions in funding
over the next spending review period.

• Seeking to secure greater devolution to London government and London boroughs in order to help
drive a broader agenda of public service reform based on closer integration of local public services,
a focus on managing service demand and helping boost economic growth across London.
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Our over-arching themes for 2015/16 are as follows:

Resourcing London: In a period of acute financial retrenchment, we will work alongside our member
boroughs and partners to:

• Ensure the best possible public financing for London climate for London arguing for greater fiscal
devolution; and

• Support councils as they seek to manage significant reductions in their funding base.

Spending Review 2015: In the period running up to the 2015 Spending Review, we will continue to
communicate the financial pressures faced by London local government and develop a strong case that will
advocate the need for both a fair financial outcome for our member boroughs and Londoners, as well as
continuing to make the case for why wider devolution and reform can secure greater value for public
money.

Securing devolution and reform: We will:

• Continue to highlight the strong London argument for boroughs, groups of boroughs and the Mayor
to be at the heart of commissioning a broader range of integrated local public services

• Work closely with the Mayor of London to negotiate with government on a further devolution
settlement to London

• Support London local government in its work to turn this into practice on the ground by providing
shared learning and approaches and developing London frameworks that help facilitate devolution
to take place at local level.

Supporting London delivery: We will:

• Provide a defined range of direct services to Londoners and London organisations directly on the
collective behalf of boroughs

• Support London local government’s collective efforts to enhance the effectiveness of public services
across the capital

• Act as a focal point for brokerage and co-ordination between different London public services, the
GLA group and boroughs on key delivery issues

• Work with key political, professional and managerial groupings across London local government to
help strengthen the capacity of our membership to deliver high quality and cost effective services.

Preparing for a new Mayoral administration: In the run up to the 2016 Mayoral election we will:

• Focus on ensuring that candidates for the office of Mayor understand the potential of a mature and
balanced collaboration with London boroughs

Organisational change: In the context of significant organisational changes in the last five years, we will
focus on:

• Managing our resources to drive on-going improvements in value for our member authorities

• Equipping ourselves with the skills, knowledge and competences required to support London local
government in this critical period
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• Creating an environment in which we continue to attract talented people and challenge them to
deliver outstanding performance
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EXPLANATORY FOREWORD TO THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

This Statement of Accounts represents the consolidation of the accounts of the activities of London
Councils Joint Committee, London Councils Grants Committee and London Councils Transport and
Environment Committee. Due to the unique nature of the Committee’s activities, a breakdown of the main
headings contained in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are detailed in appendices A
toC.

Financial information

The Director of Corporate Resources has pleasure in presenting the Consolidated Accounts which consist
of the following:

• Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts (page 25);

• Consolidated Movement in Reserves Statement (pages 37 - 38);

• Consolidated Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (page 39);

• Consolidated Balance Sheet (page 40);

• Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (page 41); and

• Notes to the Consolidated Accounts (pages 42 — 72).

Revenue expenditure

Set out below is a comparison between the actual and budget for the year.

Revised Budget Actual Variation
£000 £000 £000

Expenditure 69,755 74,019 4,264
Income (67,317) (73,319) (6,002)
Interest income and
expenditure (75) 587 662
Deficit for the year 2,363 1,287 (1,076)

Transfer from Reserves (2,363) (5,391) (3,028)
Net Surplus for the year
(including transfers from
reserves) (4,104) (4,104)

The surplus of £4.1 04 million is split over the three funding streams as follows:

Transport,
and

Grants Environment Joint
Committee Comm thee Committee Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
Total Expenditure 11,057 49,310 13,652 74,019

Total Income (10,388) (49,005) (13,926) (73,319)
Interest income and expenditure 26 179 382 587
Deficit for the year 695 484 108 1,287
Transfer from Reserves (869) (2,835) (1,687) (5,391)

Net Surplus (174) (2,351) (1,579) (4,104)
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Transport and Environment (TEC) and the Grants Committee (GC) are separate joint-committees that
require separate accounts to be prepared (refer to Note 1, Item I on page 47 and Appendices A and B on
pages 73 and 74).

Grants Committee

The surplus of £174,000 is attributable to a surplus of £78,000 in relation to London Councils main grants
programme and a surplus of £96,000 in the European Social Fund (ESF) match funded grants programme.

The surplus of £78,000 on the main grants programme is attributable to:

• a provisional net underspend of £136,000 in relation to payments for commissioned services, split
between an underspend of £123,500 relating anticipated payments for 2014/15, plus a return to
revenue of estimated liabilities of £12,500 set up in respect of 2011/12, which will not be paid out.

• a provisional net overspend of £58,000 in relation to grants administration expenditure attributable
to an overspend of £87,000 in respect of salary costs, general running costs and central recharges,
offset by underspends of £12,000 in respect of the research budget and £17,000 in respect of
investment income received on Committee reserves.

For the ESF/borough funded commissions, payments in 2014/15 were £324,000 in excess of the budgeted
provision. However, over the life of the current two-year programme, payments total £3.214m, which is
£546,000 less than the total two-year budget provision of £3.76 million. Up until 2 June 2015, a further
£283,000 had been paid in respect of this two-year programme and there will be further residual final
payments in respect of this programme during the first two quarters in 2015/16. To cover the additional
payments made in 2014/15, borough contributions collected in 2013/14 of £261,000 have been applied,
together with additional ESF grant of127,000. For 2014/1 5, there has been no call of accumulated
ESF/borough funded reserves of £773,000. The administration of the ESF/borough funded commissions,
including the establishment of a bad debt provision, was £32,000 under the budgeted provision of
£120,000.

Transport and Environment Committee

A deficit on revenue activities of £484,000 has been posted for 2014/15 which, after a net transfer of £2.835
from reserves has led to an overall surplus after net transfers from reserves of £2.351 million. The surplus
is due to:

• Lorry Control AdministrationlPCN income (-71 1,000) - The administration of the London Lorry
Control Scheme underspent the budget of £549,000 by £10,000. However, there was a significant
increase in the collection of PCN income of £701,000 above the budgetary provision of £450,000,
due to continued effective performance of the outsourced enforcement function meaning that
transaction volumes continue to increase, leading to higher levels of debt actually being raised and
collected. In addition, the development of the Adaptis computer management system allows
outstanding debt to be registered at the Court more quickly. Of the £1.151 million income due for the
year, £360,000 has yet to be collected and has been registered with the County Court. A bad debt
provision of £288,000 has been established in respect of this outstanding amount, in accordance
with usual accounting practice. This is an increase of £1 13,000 on the bad debt provision of
£175,000 as at 31 March 2014, so the net surplus income reduces to £588,000 for the year;

• Freedom Pass non-TIL bus services (-366,0O0) - In December 2013, TEC approved a budgetary
provision of £2 million for 2014/15 to cover the cost of payments to non-TfL bus operators resulting
from the introduction of the national concessionary fares scheme in April 2008, the overall cost of
which is demand led by eligible bus users. Claims from operators amounting to £1 .671 million have
been received and accepted for 2014/15, which together with a surplus of liabilities setup in relation
to claims for 2013/14 of37,000 has led to an underspend of366,000;
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• Net Freedom Pass survey and issue costs (-f1 84,000) - The budget for the pass survey and

issue processes for the year was £950,000. This budget covers the issuing of Freedom Passes to

new applicants and for the replacement of passes which are lost, stolen or faulty. To undertake

these functions, which were previously undertaken by the Post Office and funded directly by
boroughs, a contract was procured with effect from 1 July 2011, which runs up until the completion

of the current Freedom Pass reissue exercise. Provisional total expenditure for 2014/15 is
£954,331, which includes costs associated with the issuing of replacement Freedom Passes.
However, a sum of688,337 was collected during 2014/15 in respect of replacement Freedom

Passes, £188,337 in excess of the £500,000 budgetary provision. In net terms, therefore, there was

a surplus of £1 84,000;

• Non Operational Staffing Costs (-J48,0OO) - The non-operational employee cost budget of

£595,000, plus £30,000 maternity cover, underspent by £143,000 at £481,000. This is primarily

attributable to vacancies being held in respect of policy staff in the Policy and Public Affairs

Directorate, leading to a reduced recharge to TEC for these salary costs. Non-operational salaries

have been fully recharged, where appropriate, to reflect actual support to direct service and

externally funded operations. In addition, allowances paid to leading TEC members also underspent

by £5,000;

• Traded Services (÷1 67,000) - This net deficit position of £167,000 is made up of a number of

elements, which have been reported regularly to both the Executive and TEC during the year.

These are listed below:

o Firstly, there are two elements where the effect on income and expenditure levels produces a
neutral effect and does not change the overall net surplus position:

A provisional underspend of £1 .549 million for reduced payments to Northampton County

Court, which is a borough demand led service for the registration of persistent non-payers of

parking PCN’s in the County Court at £7 per time. The costs are fully recovered from
boroughs, leading to a compensating reduced level of income collected for the year.

> Expenditure on congestion charging appeals is estimated to be £248,000, £72,000 less than

the budgetary provision of £320,000. This is attributable to the number of appeals heard
during the year of 6,497 being less than the budgeted figure of 8,000. The throughput of

appeals is calculated at 3.28 appeals per hour, compared to 3.55 per hour for 2013/1 4. The
cost of these appeals is recharged to the GLA/TfL at full cost, so there was a corresponding

reduction in income due for the year of £72,000, which therefore has a zero effect on the
Committee’s provisional financial position for the year.

o Secondly, there is a net deficit of £132,000 in respect of parking and traffic appeals. The number

of appeals and statutory declarations heard during the year was 55,318 against a budget of

70,000, generating income of £2.197 million, £500,000 less than the budget estimate. However,

this is offset by a significant reduction in adjudicator, contractor and administration costs of

£356,000. The throughput of appeals was 2.9 appeals per hour, compared to a budget figure of

3.29, and an actual figure of 3.38 appeals per hour for 2013/14.The number of live parking

appeals to be heard as at 31 March 2015 was 4,164, compared to 6,204 for 2013/1 4, which

broadly equates to the notice of appeals received during the last month of the financial year.

o Thirdly, there has been a reduction in the use of other parking systems by boroughs and TfL,

particularly the TRACE system. This has led to a reduction in income of £68,000 for the year

offset by an increase in variable unit charges of £34,000 payable to the contractor, Capita. The

projected net deficit for other parking systems is, therefore, £34,000. In addition, the fixed cost

element of the Capita contract has marginally overspent by £1,000, due to minor variations in

service levels and system access developments
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• Parking on Private Land Appeals — (-1.f 98 million) —The reversal of the liability recognised in
the accounts with respect to the POPLA service;

• Residual variances of +f89,000.

Joint Committee

The surplus of £1 .579 million is attributable to:

• Employee Costs (-244,OOO) - The headline position on salaries is an underspend of £270,000 on
officer salary costs, offset by an overspend of £26,000 relating to members allowances. For officer
salary costs, the maternity budget of £60,000 was not used during the year and there were
underspends of £26,000 in the Chief Executive’s Office, £73,000 in PAPA and £96,000 in respect of
the YPES due to vacancies not being filled during the year;

• Central Recharge Expenditure (+1 26,000) - These costs relate to recharges to London Care
Placements (€108,000) and the HR Metrics services (€5,000), which are unbudgeted. The
London Health Board (LHB) attracted a charge of £109,000, which was £17,000 above the
budgeted figure. Recharges to the YPES were £3,000 below the budgeted estimate. A proportion of
these additional costs are attributable to the full year effect of the review of London Councils central
recharging mechanism undertaken in 2013/1 4.;

• Improvement and Efficiency work (-13f,000) - The Leaders’ Committee agreed to continue
funding five former performance and procurement legacy projects in December 2011. These are
managed via a variety of borough networks. The budget for 2014/15 was £305,000 and work has
continued to develop thinking within both procurement and performance, undertaken in close
cooperation with senior borough officers and against a backdrop of wider conversations on
performance and procurement systems in London and the development of pan-London category
management strategies (funded by the Capital Ambition Board). Work has continued on three
projects during 2014/1 5, amounting to £174,000, leading to the underspend of £131,000, which
includes £40,000 in respect of member development work;

• Research and Commissioning (-297,00O) - Expenditure on commissioning research and other
priority work amounted to £203,000 for the year, leading to an underspend of £297,000 against the
approved budget of £500,000. This saving reflects the fact that the profile of work requiring
externally commissioned support has again been lower during the course of the year than in
previous years. During the last year previous enhancements to in-house capability have been
reinforced with expanded finance input into published research across all policy areas. The problem
with this heading may be expected to change through 2015/16 in the context of joint work to secure
further devolution and reform;

• Borough Contributions towards London Care Placements (-114,000) - Contributions from
boroughs and other subscribers exceeded the budgeted target of210,000 by £12,000. In addition,
contributions carried forward as a receipt in advance from 2013/14 of102,000 led to overall
additional income of114,000;

• Central Recharge Income f-640,000) - Additional income in respect of central recharges of
£640,000 has arisen, which is partly attributable to the full year effect of the additional central costs
chargeable to the TEC and Grants funding streams, to externally funded projects and to service
contracts following the revision to London Councils central recharging mechanism. Budgets for
2015/16 have been adjusted to reflect the anticipated outcome of the recharge model moving
forward and there may be scope for further adjustment from 2016/17 onwards. The additional
recharges result in increased income for the Joint Committee and broadly comprise of the following:
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EXPLANATORY FOREWORD TO THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS (continued)

o Recharges for communications staffing and running costs of £201,000;
o Recharges for Corporate Governance functions, including that of the Chief Executive’s Office of

£146,000;
o Recharges for Corporate Resources staffing, SLAs with the City of London, External Audit and

general office costs of £215,000 to TEC and the Grants Committee; and
o Recharges for Corporate Resources staffing, SLAs with the City of London, External Audit and

general office costs of £76,000 to externally funded functions and service contracts;

• Transfer from reserves (+201 ,000) — The reduction in the forecast transfer relates to the work of
LHB. Only £153,000 out of a planned £354,000 was required to be transferred to the revenue
account to fully fund the activities of the LHB in 2014/15;

• Other Income (-553,000) - This additional income is made up of a number of elements:

o Charges for office space at Southwark Street of £714,000, which includes £23,000 for letting of
accommodation space under licence to the London Social Care Partnership and the London
Directors of Public Health;

o Contributions of £145,000 towards the work of the LHB from funding partners;
o Income in respect of the London Summit (23,000) and the Andy Ludlow Award (67,000);
o Additional income of £49,000 for the letting of meeting room facilities at Southwark Street,

including £25,000 raised from the London Social Care Partnership and the London Directors of
Public Health

o Additional income of £24,000 for GLEE related courses and other associated work,
o offset by the cost of consultants engaged to deliver some of the courses of £11,000, leading to

net additional income of13,000;
o Funding sources raised by the YPES of £3,000 relating to South East Strategic leaders and

£43,000 in respect of matched skills funding;
o £14,000 in respect of the HR Metric services, which London Councils took over the

management of from LB Haringey in January 2015;
o A VAT refund of £38,000 and £14,000 absorbed into JC reserves from the obsolete balances on

completed projects; and
o Arts Councils funding of £6,000 to part fund work charged to the commissioning budget.; and

• Residual variances of £73,000.

Budget for 201 5/16

On 9 December2014, the Leaders’ Committee approved a total expenditure budget for 2015/16 of68.141
million, exclusive of the borough payment of £327.922 million to Transport for London (TfL) in respect of
Concessionary Fares. Total income sources, including the use of existing balances of £1 .389 million were
also estimated to be £68.1 41 million, leaving a projected balanced budget for the year.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Committee’s Responsibilities

The Committee is required to:

• make arrangement for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Committee, that officer is
the Director of Corporate Resources;

• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
assets; and

• approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Director of Corporate Resources’ Responsibilities

The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Committee’s statement of
accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFAILASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (“the Code”).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Director of Corporate Resources has:

• selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and
• complied with the Code.

The Director of Corporate Resources has also:

• kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and
• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Responsible Finance Officer’s Certificate

I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Committee at 31 March 2015 and of its income and expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2015.

F Smith CPFA 24 September 2015
Director of Corporate Resources
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APPROVAL CERTIFICATE

At a meeting of London Councils’ Audit Committee held at 59% Southwark Street, London, SE1 OAL on
24 September 2015, the statement of accounts were approved on behalf of the Committee.

Cur Roger Ramsey 24 September 2015
Chair of London Councils’ Audit Committee
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

London Councils (the Committee) is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance
with the law, that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently
and effectively. The Committee is also responsible for securing continuous improvement in the way its
functions are exercised.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Committee is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, and which
includes arrangements for the management of risk.

London Councils has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance in the form of a framework,
which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFNSOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government. A copy of London Councils Corporate Governance Framework can be obtained from
the Director of Corporate Governance at 59% Southwark Street, London SE1 OAL. This statement explains
how London Councils has applied this code and also meets the requirements of regulation 4(3) of the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011.

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which the Committee
is directed and controlled and such activities through which it accounts to, and engages with, its
stakeholders. It enables the organisation to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to
consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risks of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can,
therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of
the Committee’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, the
impact should they be realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at London Councils for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.

The governance framework

The key elements of the Committee’s governance framework include:

• Identifying and communicating the Committee’s vision of its purpose — The Committee
produces an annual Corporate Business Plan which sets out the organisation’s priorities for the
year. This is informed by on-going liaison with key borough stakeholders and specifically by a
programme of meetings between the Chair and all Executive portfolio holders. The Corporate
Business Plan is submitted to the Leaders’ Committee. There are a number of ways in which the
Committee communicates with relevant stakeholders which include member briefings, committee
and other meetings and events such as the London Councils’ Summit.

• Reviewing the Committee’s vision - The Committee produces an Annual Review at the end of
each financial year. The review provides a summary of the key activities over the last year and
highlights the key achievements.
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AN NUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Measuring the quality of services - Data collected during the year feeds into the production of a

key achievements report at the year end. London Councils Corporate Management Board (CMB),

the London Councils Executive and the Grants and Transport and Environment Committees receive

regular financial management reports that monitor actual income and expenditure trends against

approved budgets. London Councils operates a complaints procedure which provides an opportunity

to put things right if an error is made and assists in the search to improve the quality of services to

member authorities and to Londoners. There are also a number of internal management
mechanisms, such as 1:1 review meetings and a fully embedded performance appraisal framework

which monitor on-going progress against objectives.

Defining and documenting roles and responsibilities — The London Councils Agreement sets

out the main functions and obligations of London Councils and its member authorities. The

Agreement includes the standing orders and financial regulations which provide details of the

delegation arrangements in place. There is a scheme of delegation in place which was last

reviewed, updated and approved by the Leaders’ Committee at its Annual General Meeting on 15

July 2014. There is an established protocol which provides guidance on the working relationships

between elected members and officers. Additional information on the roles and responsibilities of

London Councils Leaders’ Committee, Executive, Grants Committee and Transport and
Environment Committee are documented in their individual Terms of Reference. All London

Councils officers are issued with a job description which confirms their duties within the
organisation.

• Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct — All London Councils Staff have

been made aware of the staff handbook which is located on the intranet site. The staff handbook

sign posts staff to London Councils policies and procedures which are on the intranet. All staff are

encouraged to refer to the intranet when they require guidance on London Councils policies and

procedures. Reference to the staff handbook is also included in the induction training of all new staff

joining London Councils with their attention specifically drawn to the financial regulations, the code

of conduct, data protection and London Councils whistle blowing policy.

• Reviewing the effectiveness of the Committee’s decision-making framework - The standing

orders and financial regulations are included within the London Councils Agreement. The standing

orders were last reviewed and the changes approved by Leaders’ Committee on 15 July 2014. The

financial regulations were reviewed and the changes approved by the Executive in February 2009.

Minutes of Committee meetings are posted on London Councils website and provide an official

record of decisions made.

• Identifying and managing risks - London Councils Risk Management Strategy and Framework

was reviewed and updated in 201 1/12 and approved by the Audit Committee in March 2012.

London Councils Corporate Risk Register is primarily compiled from the Risk Registers for each of

London Councils three Directorates. The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed in accordance with

London Councils Risk Management Framework which includes an annual review by the Audit

Committee and was last reviewed in September 2014. The Directorate Risk Registers are reviewed

by the Audit Committee each financial year. London Councils’ Corporate Management Board

ensures that the risk registers, both Directorate and Corporate, continue to support London

Councils’ corporate priorities, which provides members with assurance on how the risks identified

are being managed. An internal audit review of London Councils risk management arrangements

was carried out during 2011/1 2. The review established that risk management is an embedded

governance control and there were no recommended improvements to the arrangements.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

• Anti-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements — London Councils is committed to having an
effective Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption strategy designed to promote standards of honest and fair
conduct, prevent fraud and corruption, detect and investigate fraud and corruption, prosecute
offenders, recover losses and maintain strong systems of internal control. There are two separate
policies in place London Councils Whistle Blowing Policy which was last updated in November 2013
and London Councils Policy to Combat Fraud, Bribery and Corruption, which was agreed by London
Councils Audit Committee in March 2014— both are available on London Councils’ intranet and
website.

• Effective management of change and transformation — London Councils has a framework for
managing organisational change which is available to all staff on the intranet. The framework
provides guidance on the statutory elements of managing change and issues that should be
considered when implementing changes.

• Financial management arrangements — London Councils’ financial management arrangements
conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA statement on the Role of the Chief
Financial Officer in Local Government.

• Assurance arrangements — London Councils’ internal audit function is carried out by the City of
London’s internal audit team under a service level agreement for financial support services. These
arrangements conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA statement on the Role of the
Head of Internal Audit in public service organisations and Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

• Discharge of the monitoring officer function — The monitoring officer is a statutory whistleblowing
role. The monitoring officer has a duty to present a report to the relevant body depending on the
function, where he or she considers that the authority has acted or is about to act unlawfully or
where there has been a finding of maladministration by the ombudsman against the authority. This
role is undertaken by the appropriate officer at London Councils depending on the circumstances
and would be one of: Chief Executive; Corporate Director of Services; Corporate Director of Policy &
Public Affairs; Director of Corporate Resources; Director of Corporate Governance all of whom are
issued with a job description which confirm their duties within the organisation. These posts are
subject to London Councils appraisal arrangements which assess performance against agreed
objectives.

• Discharge of the head of paid service function — London Councils’ Chief Executive is the head of
paid service. As with all Committee officers, the Chief Executive is issued with a job description
which confirms his duties within the organisation. He is subject to appraisal arrangements with
Group Leaders who assess his performance against agreed objectives.

• Audit Committee — London Councils’ Audit Committee has its own comprehensive Terms of
Reference. The Terms of Reference were reviewed by the Audit Committee on 24 September 2010.
The Audit Committee meets three times a year and is chaired by a leading member from a borough
who can be a member of the Executive. The members of the Audit Committee will normally, but not
necessarily, be members of London Councils Leaders’ Committee and with the exception of its
chair, are not members of the Executive.

• Compliance with relevant laws and regulations - London Councils has comprehensive financial
regulations and a comprehensive set of human resources policies and procedures which are
reviewed on a regular basis. These arrangements ensure compliance with all applicable statutes,
regulations and other relevant statements of best practice in order to ensure that public funds are
properly safeguarded and are used economically, efficiently and effectively and in accordance with
the statutory and other authorities that govern their use.
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ANN UAL GOVERNANCE STATEM ENT (continued)

• Whistle-blowing — London Councils has a whistle-blowing policy which is available to all staff on
the intranet. The policy aims to encourage staff and others to feel confident in raising serious
concerns by providing clear avenues through which those concerns can be raised and reassuring
staff who raise concerns that they will not be victimised if they have a reasonable belief and the
disclosure was made in good faith. It is also on the website and staff are encouraged to bring this
policy and the policy to combat fraud, bribery and corruption to the attention of contractors and third
parties.

• Identifying the development needs of members and officers — London Councils has access to a
programme of training and development, which is available to all staff and can be found on the
intranet. The aim of the programme is to assist in the achievement of the organisation’s aims and
objectives by providing opportunities for staff to gain the necessary skills and knowledge required to
perform their tasks and duties effectively. London Councils also has a performance appraisal
scheme which provides all staff with regular assessments of their performance and development
needs in relation to their work objectives. Members have access to training in their own authorities.
There is a member only section on London Councils’ website which provides them with useful
information, regular briefings in specific policy areas and a forum for information exchange.

• Establishing clear channels of communication — London Councils actively engages with relevant
stakeholders when developing its vision and strategies. All Committee meetings are open to the
public and consultations are undertaken where relevant. London Councils issues member briefings
and arranges a number of events, conferences and seminars that also provide opportunities for
stakeholder engagement. London Councils produces an Annual Review which provides a summary
of the key achievements over the last year and annual statutory accounts. Information on
consultations, minutes of committee meetings and publications are posted on London Councils
website www.Iondoncouncils.gov.uk. London Councils consults with Chief Officer groupings across
boroughs in the development of its work.

• Enhancing the accountability for service delivery and effectiveness of public service
providers - All working arrangements with public service providers are subject to signed
agreements/contracts which set out the terms of the service provided. All agreements/contracts are
reviewed to ensure that the roles and responsibilities of the parties involved are clearly defined and
the terms are beneficial to London Councils and its member authorities. Key performance indicators
are incorporated into agreements where appropriate and monitored regularly. Nominated officers
are responsible for managing the outcomes of the service and establishing clear lines of
communication with providers.

• Partnership arrangements — London Councils has a set protocol for staff to follow when working in
partnership with outside bodies. A checklist is to be completed for each new partnership or project.
Partnership arrangements are also subject to signed agreements which include objectives, roles
and responsibilities. The performance of partnerships are monitored in the same manner as other
service providers. London Councils does not currently have any material partnership arrangements.

Review of effectiveness

London Councils has responsibility for conducting at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by
the work of London Councils Corporate Management Board which has responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the governance environment, the internal audit annual report and also by comments
made by the external auditors in their annual audit letter and other reports. The review of the effectiveness
of the governance framework includes:
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• The work of Internal Audit, undertaken by the City of London under a service level agreement, and
the annual opinion of the Head of Audit & Risk Management at the City of London. Internal Audit
plays a central role in providing the required assurance on internal controls through its
comprehensive risk-based audit of all auditable areas within a five-year planning cycle, — with key
areas being reviewed annually. This is reinforced by consultation with London Councils Corporate
Management Board and London Councils’ Audit Committee on perceived risk and by a rigorous
follow-up audit regime. The Internal Audit Section of the City of London operates, in all aspects, in
accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice and Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. An internal
audit review of governance arrangements was carried out during 2012/13 with the outcome reported
to the Audit Committee in March 2013.

• The Audit Committee’s review of the governance arrangements in place during 2014/15.

• London Councils Corporate Management Board considers an annual report on Corporate
Governance, which includes work completed during the current year and highlights work planned for
the following year.

Areas for development during 2015/16

The review of the effectiveness of London Councils governance arrangements has revealed the following
areas for development during 2015/1 6:

ICT Strategy, Security & Operational Control

A review of the Committee’s ICT strategy, security and operational control was undertaken during 2013/14.
The review revealed that whilst an adequate control framework was in place, there were a number of areas
that required improved controls. Management has already taking action to address a number of the issues
that were raised but there are still improvements to be made in areas such as system security and
infrastructure during 2015/1 6.

Inventory

An internal audit spot check of petty cash, creditor payments, safe contents and inventory lists was carried
out during 2013/1 4. The check included an examination of procedures over the petty cash imprest, safe
access and security, inventory and a creditor depth test for a sample of transactions. The review revealed
that the inventory list for furniture and equipment had not been updated on a regular basis. The
recommendation included in the spot check report will be implemented during 2015/1 6.

London Councils will take adequate steps over the coming year to address the above matters in order to
further enhance its governance arrangements. London Councils is satisfied that these steps will address
the improvement needs identified in the effectiveness review. London Councils will monitor their
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Significant governance issues

There are no significant governance issues.

d I
John O’Brien 24 September 2015
Chief Executive

Mayor Jules Pipe 24 September 2015
Chair of London Councils
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE LONDON COUNCILS JOINT COMMITTEE
(THE “COMMITTEE”)

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion London Councils Joint Committee’s Statement of Accounts (“the financial statements”):

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Committee’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of the Committee’s
income and expenditure and cash flows for the year then ended; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFNLASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice
2014/1 5.

What we have audited

The financial statements comprise:

• the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015;

• the Consolidated Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year then ended;

• the Consolidated Movement in Reserves Statement for the year then ended;

• the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended; and

• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is the
CIPFNLASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 supported by the
CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2014/1 5.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the Director of Corporate Resources has made a number of subjective
judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made
assumptions and considered future events.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion the information given in the explanatory foreword for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit
Commission requires us to report to you if:

• in our opinion, the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government: a Framework’ published by CIPFNSOLACE in June 2007 (updated as at December 2012) or is
misleading or inconsistent with information of which we are aware from our audit; or

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998; or

• we make any recommendations under section 11 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 that requires the
Committee to consider it at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in response ; or

• we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Audit Commission Act 1998.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE LONDON COUNCILS JOINT COMMITTEE
(THE “COMMITTEE”) (continued))

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the Director of Corporate Resources

As explained mote fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 25 the Director of Corporate Resources is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view in
accordance with the CIPFNLASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/1 5
and the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2014/15.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with Part II of the Audit
Commission Act 1998, the Code of Audit Practice 2010— Local Government Bodies issued by the Audit Commission
and International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK&I)”). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Committee’s members as a body in
accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 48 of the
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies — Local Government, published by the Audit
Commission in March 2010. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Committee’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed;

• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Director of Corporate Resources; and

• the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Director of Corporate Resources’ judgements against
available evidence, forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary
to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness

of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts to identify material

inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit.
If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE LONDON COUNCILS JOINT COMMITTEE
(THE “COMMITTEE”) (continued))

Conclusion on the Committee’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use
of resources

Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance published by the Audit Commission on 13 October 2014, we
have no matters to report with respect to whether, London Councils Joints Committee put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March
2015.

What a review of the arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources involves

We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance issued by
the Audit Commission in October 2014. We have considered the results of the following:

• our review of the Annual Governance Statement;

• the work of other relevant regulatory bodies or inspectorates, to the extent that the results of this work impact
on our responsibilities at the Local Authority; and

• our locally determined risk-based work.

Our responsibilities and those of the Committee

The Committee is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that the Committee has made
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit
Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires us to report to you any matters that prevent us being satisfied that
the Committee has put in place such arrangements.

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the Committee has
put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are
not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Committee’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE LONDON COUNCILS JOINT COMMITTEE

(THE “COMMITTEE”) (continued))

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of London Councils Joints Committee in

accordance with the requirements of Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Practice issued by the

Audit Commission.

Ciaran McLaughlin (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
1 Embankment Place, London WC2N 6RH

4Z...lSeptember 2015

Notes:

(a) The maintenance and integrity of the London Councils Joints Committee website is the responsibility of the

directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the

auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the Statement of Accounts since they

were initially presented on the website.

(b) Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the Statement of Accounts

may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.



L
O

N
D

O
N

C
O

U
N

C
IL

S
—

JO
IN

T
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
P

ag
e

37

C
O

N
S

O
L

ID
A

T
E

D
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
IN

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
F

O
R

T
H

E
Y

E
A

R
E

N
D

E
D

31
M

A
R

C
H

20
15

T
hi

s
st

at
em

en
t

sh
ow

s
th

e
m

ov
em

en
t

in
th

e
ye

ar
on

th
e

di
ff

er
en

t
re

se
rv

es
he

ld
by

th
e

C
om

m
it

te
e,

an
al

ys
ed

in
to

us
ab

le
re

se
rv

es
an

d
un

us
ab

le
re

se
rv

es
.

T
he

su
rp

lu
s

or
de

fi
ci

t
on

th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

se
rv

ic
es

lin
e

sh
ow

s
th

e
tr

ue
ec

on
om

ic
co

st
of

pr
ov

id
in

g
th

e
C

om
m

itt
ee

’s
se

rv
ic

es
,

m
or

e
de

ta
il

s
of

w
hi

ch
ar

e
sh

ow
n

in
th

e
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

In
co

m
e

an
d

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

S
ta

te
m

en
t.

T
ot

al
U

sa
b
le

U
n
u
sa

b
le

G
en

er
al

R
es

er
v

e
S

p
ec

if
ic

R
es

er
v
e

R
es

er
v
es

R
es

er
v
es

T
ot

al
R

es
er

v
es

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

B
al

an
ce

at
1

A
pr

il
20

14
9,

88
7

1,
80

0
11

,6
87

(1
6,

33
4)

(4
,6

47
)

D
ef

ic
it

on
th

e
pr

ov
is

io
n

of
se

rv
ic

es
(1

,2
87

)
-

(1
,2

87
)

-
(1

,2
87

)
O

th
er

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
In

co
m

e
an

d
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
(n

ot
e

9)
-

-
(8

,1
41

)
(8

,1
41

)

T
ot

al
C

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
v

e
In

co
m

e
an

d
E

x
p
en

d
it

u
re

(1
,2

87
)

(1
,2

87
)

(8
,1

41
)

(9
,4

28
)

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

be
tw

ee
n

ac
co

un
ti

ng
ba

si
s

an
d

fu
nd

in
g

ba
si

s
un

de
r

re
gu

la
ti

on
s

(n
ot

e
6)

1,
08

2
1,

08
2

(1
,0

82
)

N
et

D
ec

re
as

e
b
ef

o
re

T
ra

n
sf

er
s

to
E

ar
m

ar
k

ed
R

es
er

v
es

(2
05

)
(2

05
)

(9
,2

23
)

(9
,4

28
)

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
to

/(
fr

om
)

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

R
es

er
ve

s
(n

ot
e

7)
1,

80
0

(1
,8

00
)

-

ln
cr

ea
se

l(
D

ec
re

as
e)

in
20

14
11

5
1,

59
5

(1
,8

00
)

(2
05

)
(9

42
23

)
(9

,4
28

)

B
al

an
ce

at
31

M
ar

ch
20

15
11

,4
82

11
,4

82
(2

5,
55

7)
(1

4,
07

5)



L
O

N
D

O
N

C
O

U
N

C
IL

S
—

JO
IN

T
C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
P

ag
e

38

C
O

N
S

O
L

ID
A

T
E

D
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
IN

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
F

O
R

T
H

E
Y

E
A

R
E

N
D

E
D

31
M

A
R

C
H

20
14

T
ot

al
U

sa
b

le
U

n
u
sa

b
le

T
ot

al
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

G
en

er
al

R
es

er
v
e

S
p

ec
if

ic
R

es
er

v
e

R
es

er
v
es

R
es

er
v

es
R

es
er

v
es

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

B
al

an
ce

at
1

A
pr

il
20

13
9,

30
6

1,
40

0
10

,7
06

(1
4,

18
4)

(3
,4

78
)

D
ef

ic
it

on
th

e
pr

ov
is

io
n

of
se

rv
ic

es
(9

1)
-

(9
1)

-
(9

1)

O
th

er
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

In
co

m
e

an
d

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

(n
ot

e
9)

-
(1

,0
78

)
(1

,0
78

)

T
ot

al
C

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e

In
co

m
e

an
d

E
x

p
en

d
it

u
re

(9
1)

(9
1)

(1
,0

78
)

(1
,1

69
)

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

be
tw

ee
n

ac
co

un
ti

ng
b

as
is

an
d

fu
nd

in
g

ba
si

s
un

de
r

re
gu

la
ti

on
s

(n
ot

e
6)

1,
07

2
1,

07
2

(1
,0

72
)

-

N
et

In
cr

ea
se

!(
D

ec
re

as
e)

b
ef

o
re

T
ra

n
sf

er
s

to
E

ar
m

ar
k
ed

R
es

er
v
es

98
1

98
1

(2
,1

50
)

(1
,1

69
)

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
(f

ro
m

)/
to

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

R
es

er
v
es

(n
ot

e
7)

(4
00

)
40

0
-

-

In
cr

ea
se

l(
D

ec
re

as
e)

in
20

13
11

4
58

1
40

0
98

1
(2

,1
50

)
(1

,1
69

)

B
al

an
ce

at
31

M
ar

ch
20

14
9,

88
7

1,
80

0
11

,6
87

(1
6,

33
4)

(4
,6

47
)



LONDON COUNCILS — JOINT COMMITTEE Page 39

CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices.

2014115 2014115 2014115 2013/14 2013114 2013/14
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Notes Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost of Services
London Councils Grants
Committee AppxA 11,057 (10,388) 669 9,093 (9,260) (167)
London Councils Transport
and Environment Committee Appx B 49,310 (49,005) 305 47,246 (47,533) (287)
London Councils Joint
Committee AppxC 13,652 (13,926) (274) 14,598 (14,528) 70

Net Revenue Cost of
Services 74,019 (73,319) 700 70,937 (71,321) (384)

Financing and investment
income and expenditure 8 587 475

Deficit on Provision of
Services 1,287 91

Actuarial loss on pension
assets/liabilities 9 8,141 1,078

Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure 8,141 1,078

Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure 9,428 1,169
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by
the Committee. The net assets or liabilities of the Committee (assets less liabilities) are matched by the
reserves held by the Committee. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves
are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Committee may use to provide services, subject to the
need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. The second category

of reserves is those that the authority is not able to use to provide services. This category includes reserves
that hold unrealised gains and losses such as the Pension Reserve.

Note 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

£000 £000

Property, Plant and Equipment 10 1,115 1,119
Intangible Assets 11 8 15

Long Term Assets 1,123 1,134

Short Term Debtors 12 5,299 8,096
Cash and Cash Equivalent 13 19,217 14,486
Current Assets 24,516 22,582

Short Term Creditors 15 (13,700) (11,728)

Provisions 16 (338) (196)
Current Liabilities (14,038) (11,924)

Provisions 16 (227) (242)

Other Long Term Liabilities 9 (25,449) (16,197)

Long Term Liabilities (25,676) (16,439)

Net Liabilities (14,075) (4,647)

Usable Reserves 17 11,482 11,687

Unusable Reserves 18 (25,557) (16,334)
Total Reserves (14,075) (4,647)

The notes on pages 42 to 72 form part of the accounts.

F Smith CPFA 24 September 2015
Director of Corporate Resources
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Committee during the
reporting period. The statement shows how the Committee generates and uses cash and cash equivalents
by classifying cash flows as operating, investing, and financing activities. Investing activities represent the
extent to which cash oufflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute towards the
Committees future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting
claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Committee.

2014115 2013I14
£000 £000

Net deficit on the provision of services (1,287) (91)

Adjustments to net deficit on the provision of services for
non-cash movements 6,304 1,704
Adjustments for items included in the net deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing
activities. (123) (165)

Net cash flows from Operating Activities (note 19) 4,894 1,448

Investing Activities (note 20) (163) 62

Financing Activities (note 21) (102)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,731 1,408

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 14,486 13,078

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 19,217 14,486
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Accounting Policies

a General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Committee’s transactions for the 2014/15 financial year
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2015. The Committee is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 which require it to be prepared
in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise of the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and the Service Reporting
Code of Practice 2014/1 5, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The Statement of Accounts have been prepared with the overriding requirement that it gives a ‘true
and fair’ view of the financial position, performance and cash flows of the Committee.

The Statement of Accounts has been prepared with reference to:

• The objective of providing financial information about the reporting authority that is useful to
existing and potential investors, lenders and other creditors in making decision about providing
resources to it;

• The objective of providing information about the Committee’s financial performance, financial
position and cash flows that is useful to a wide range of users for assessing the stewardship of
the Committee’s management and for making economic decisions;

• The objective of meeting the common needs of most users focusing on the ability of the users to
make economic decisions, the needs of public accountability and the stewardship of the
Committee’s resources;

• The accrual basis of accounting;

• The following underlying assumptions;

o Going concern basis.

• The following qualitative characteristics:

o Relevance;
o Materiality; and
o Faithful representation.

• The following enhancing qualitative characteristics:

o Comparability;
o Verifiability;
o Timeliness; and
o Understandability.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is historical cost.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied.



LONDON COUNCILS — JOINT COMMITTEE Page 43

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

b Accruals of Income and Expenditure

The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis which means that income and expenditure are
accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.
In particular:

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Committee transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Committee;

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Committee can measure reliably
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Committee;

• Expenses in relation to services received (including those services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when services are received, rather than when payments are made;

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract;

• Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful
that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue
for the income that might not be collected;

• Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant category within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless they represent capital receipts or
capital expenditure; and

• Creditors for grants outstanding to voluntary organisations at the year-end are included where
approved by Committee, the circumstances of the voluntary organisation have not changed
since approval, and evidence shows that expenditure in respect of the grant has been incurred.
Creditors for ESF grants are recognised where grant claims received from voluntary
organisations exceed payments made to the claimant.

c Allocation of Income

Income, where possible, is allocated to the specific service area to which it relates or offsets specific
expenditure. Income that is not directly attributable to a particular service is apportioned to other
expenditure categories based on actual expenditure.

d Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not mote than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in three
months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Committee’s cash management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

Accounting Policies (continued)

e Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Committee. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
oufflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.

f Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and
non-monetary benefits for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the
year in which employees render service to the Committee. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday
entitlements (or any form of leave e.g. flexi leave) earned by employees but not taken before the
year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the
wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the
employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Committee to terminate
an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis when the Committee is demonstrably
committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or group of officers or making an offer
to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the
General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Committee to the pension
fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

As part of the terms and conditions of employment, officers of the Committee are offered
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by the London Pension Fund
Authority (LPFA). The scheme provides defined benefits to its members (retirement lump sums and
pensions), earned as officers work for the Committee.

This scheme is accounted for as a final salary defined benefit scheme:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

Accounting Policies (continued)

• The liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the Committee are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the future
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees,
based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, projected earnings of
current employees etc.

• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using, a discount rate of 3.4% (2013/14:
4.5%).

• The assets of the pension fund attributable to the Committee are included in the Balance Sheet
at their fair value:

o Quoted securities — current bid price;
o Unquoted securities — professional estimate;
o Unutilised securities — current bid price; and
o Property — market value.

• The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into six components:

o Current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this
year debited to the Staff Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement to the services for which the employees worked;

o Past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years debited to the
Staff Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

o Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), ie net interest expense for the
Committee — the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that
arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — this is
calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the
period — taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the
period as a result of contribution and benefit payments;

o Return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) — charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure;

o Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions — charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure; and

o Contributions paid to the pension fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the
pension fund in sefflement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

Accounting Policies (continued)

In accordance with the Code of Practice, the General Reserve balance is charged with the actual
amount payable by the Committee to the pension fund and not the amount calculated according to
the accounting standard. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, there are transfers to and from
the Pensions Reserve to remove the impact of the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits
and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any such amounts payable
but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pension Reserve measures the
beneficial impact to the General Reserve of being required to account for retirement benefits on the
basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

The actuarial gains and losses are charged to Other Comprehensive Income in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement with a corresponding entry in the Pensions Reserve.

g Exceptional Items and Prior Period Adjustments

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately,
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the
accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Committee’s
financial performance.

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events
and conditions on the Committee’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is
made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and
comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the period.

h Financial Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Committee becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and
carried at amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The
effective rate of interest is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the
life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

Currently the Committee has no borrowings.

Financial Assets

Financial Assets are receivables that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an
active market. The assets are initially measured at fair value, and subsequently measured at their
amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

Accounting Policies (continued)

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions are recognised as due to the Committee when there is reasonable assurance that:

• the Committee will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and

• the grants will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Committee are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is
credited to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

j Intangible Assets

Expenditure of £1 ,000 or more on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are
controlled by the Committee as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it
is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to
the Committee. Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and amortised over the life of the
asset.

k Interest Income

Interest is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements of the constituent
committees based on average cash balances held by the City of London and invested in
accordance with their Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy,
which is approved by the City of London’s Financial Investment Board.

I Interest in Companies and Other Entities

London Councils Joint Committee operates one subsidiary, London Councils Limited, a company
limited by guarantee. London Councils Limited activities are consolidated within the Joint Committee
statement of accounts. The company exists to record all transactions relating to the holding of
property leases and the employment of the political advisers. London Councils’ member boroughs
are the members of the company and London Councils’ Elected Officers are its Directors. London
Councils benefits directly from the accommodation paid for by London Councils Limited and the
services provided by the political advisers to members in their roles at London Councils.

The activities of London Councils Grants Committee and London Councils Transport and
Environment Committee, which are carried out by London Councils Joint Committee, are
incorporated into these group accounts. The activities of these associated committees and the main
Joint Committee are detailed in appendices A to C.

Intragroup transactions are excluded from the Statement of Accounts on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

Accounting Policies (continued)

m Leases

Finance leases

Lease arrangements for assets are treated as finance leases when substantially all the risks and
rewards associated with the ownership of an asset are transferred to the Committee. Rentals
payable are apportioned between:

• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property (recognised as a liability in the balance
sheet at the start of the lease, matched with an asset within Property, Plant and Equipment — the
liability is written down as the rent becomes payable); and

• A finance charge.

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases are accounted for using the policies
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the life of the lease.

Operating leases

Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease rentals payable are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on a
straight line basis over the terms of the lease.

n Overheads

Central overhead costs identified as directly attributable to a particular funding stream are allocated
in full to that funding stream. Where such costs are not directly attributable, they are re-charged
across the funding streams using the most relevant apportionment basis, from the list below:

• Number of desk spaces;
• Full Time Equivalent units;
• Absolute value of transactions; and
• Volume of transactions.

o Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. Expenditure on the acquisition,
creation, enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment subject to a de minimis level of £1,000, is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Committee and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an
expense when it is incurred.

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

• the purchase price; and

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

Accounting Policies (continued)

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet at their depreciated historical costs.

Assets are depreciated on a straight line basis, starling after the year of acquisition, over their
economic useful life as follows:

• Leasehold Improvements — the lower of 10 years or the remaining period left on the lease;

• Furniture and Equipment:

o Furniture and Fittings — 5 years;

o Computer Hardware — 3 years.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or
loss on disposal. Receipts from disposal (if any) are credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

p Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Committee a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
the year that the Committee becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best
estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and uncertainties. When payments are eventually made, they are charged to
the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each
financial year, where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provisions is reversed and credited
back to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Provisions for dilapidations costs
and works in connection with properly leases are built up over the life of the lease on a straight line
basis.

q Reserves

The Committee uses Specific Reserves to set aside funds earmarked for a specific purpose and
money received from boroughs outside the main subscription, or from other public sector bodies,
which is to be used for specific purposes. Reserves are created by transferring amounts from the
General Reserve to the Specific Reserves on the Movement in Reserves Statement. When
expenditure to be financed from a specific reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate
service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and a transfer of funds from the specific
reserve made to the General Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for retirement and employee
benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Committee.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

r Value Added Tax

Value Added Tax (VAT) is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from
Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

2. Accounting Standards that have been Issued but not yet adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 (the Code) has
introduced changes in accounting policies which will be required from 1 April 2015. If these had
been adopted for the financial year 2014/15 there would be no material changes to the Committee’s
accounts as detailed below.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement — This standard applies to IFRSs that require or permit fair value
measurements or disclosures and provides a single framework for measuring fair value and requires
disclosures about fair value measurement. The standard defines fair value on the basis of an ‘exit
price’ notion and uses a ‘fair value hierarchy’, which results in a market-based, rather than entity-
specific, measurement. The introduction of this standard will have no impact on the Committee’s
accounts due to its low asset base which is carried on the balance sheet at depreciated historical
cost.

lASl9 Employee Benefits — There has been a narrow scope amendment to this standard which
applies to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit pension plans. The
objective of the amendments is to simplify the accounting for contributions that are independent of
the number of years of employee service, for example, employee contributions that are calculated
according to a fixed percentage of salary. It clarifies the requirements on the way contributions that
are linked to service should be attributed to periods of service. In addition, it permits a practical
expedient if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, in that
contributions, can, but are not required, to be recognised as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the related service is tendered. This amendment will not have a material impact on
the Committee’s accounts.

IFRIC 21 Levies — This interpretation identifies the obligating event for the recognition of a liability
as the activity that triggers the payment of the levy in accordance with the relevant legislation. The
interpretation clarifies that ‘economic compulsion’ and the going concern principle do not create or
imply that an obligating event has occurred. This interpretation will not have a material impact on the
Committee’s accounts.

3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Change in Accounting Estimates

There has been a change to the methodology for calculating the Committee’s bad debt provision in
order to comply with the requirements of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. In
previous years the bad debt provision was calculated using a combination of the age of the debts
and any specific information affecting their recoverability. The new methodology categotises debtors
into groups of similar credit characteristics which are separately assessed with a percentage
provision determined by reference to historical loss experience. Where current information indicates
that the historical loss experience does not properly reflect current conditions, the historical loss
experience will be adjusted accordingly. The new methodology has been applied across the same
debtor categories as the previous methodology. This revision results in a decrease in the bad debt
provision of £49,000 due to the low historic levels of debt write-off.
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3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in note 1, the Committee has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.

The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

Government Funding

There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However,
the Committee has determined that this uncertainty is not sufficient to provide an indication that the
assets of the Committee might be impaired as a result of a need to reduce levels of service
provision.

4. Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Committee about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot
be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and
estimates.

The items in the Committee’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2015 for which there is a significant risk of
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Pensions

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating
to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement
ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. Barnett Waddingham LLP, an
independent firm of qualified actuaries, is engaged by the LPFA to provide the Committee with
expert advice about the assumptions applied.

The effect on the net pensions liability of changes in individual assumptions can be measured. For
instance, a 0.1% increase in the discount rate assumption would result in a decrease in the pension
liability of f.1.367 million. However, the assumptions interact in complex ways. During 2014/1 5,
Barnett Waddingham LLP advised that the net pensions liability had decreased by £9 million as a
result of a change in financial assumptions.
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4. Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

POPLA

In September 2013, an objection was raised on the 2012/13 accounts stating that TEC did not have
the legal powers to provide the POPLA service for the EPA. London Councils’ external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC), investigated the objection prior to issuing a formal
determination. It is London Councils view that the that the service was and is currently being
delivered by TEC lawfully on behalf of all the participating authorities with their consent and proper
authority. However, PwC sought independent legal advice which indicated that entering into and
operating the contract was not within the existing delegated powers of TEC and that the income and
expenditure derived from the contract and recorded within the accounts is unlawful. It was common
ground that the participating local authorities had the power to enter into the arrangements with the
EPA and that these powers may be delegated to the joint committee. The disagreement related to
whether there was a proper delegation of those powers to the Transport and Environment
Committee.

In light of the auditor’s view, a provision was included in the 2013/14 accounts for the cumulative

income received from the operation of the POPLA contract to 31 March 2014 which amounted to
£1198 million. To put the matter of on-going lawfulness beyond doubt London Councils agreed to
address PwC’s concerns by seeking an express delegation by the London local authorities of the
exercise of their statutory powers to the Transport and Environment Committee for the purposes of
delivering the POPLA service. This exercise was completed in March 2015 and PwC issued a
determination acknowledging that London Councils had taken action to put the matter beyond legal

doubt. As a result, the provision has been reversed out in the 2014/15 accounts.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets. The current economic
climate makes it uncertain that the Committee will be able to sustain its current spending on repairs
and maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.

lithe useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the assets
falls. It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge for Leasehold Improvements would
increase by £21 000 for every year that useful lives had to be reduced.

Provisions

The Committee has made a provision of £565,000 for its contractual obligations for dilapidations

and periodic decoration included within its property leases. The provision is based on the most
reasonable estimate of these future costs. An increase of 10% to the total value of these costs
would have the effect of adding £57,000 to the annual contribution to the provision.

Bad Debt Provision

At 31 March 2015, the Committee had a balance of accounts receivable debtors of £1 .28 million.
This amount excludes debts registered at the County Court. A review of these balances resulted in

a calculation of a bad debt provision, based on historic loss experiences, of £63,000. However, in
the current economic climate it is not certain that such an allowance would be sufficient. If collection
rates were to deteriorate the provision will have to be increased accordingly.
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5. Events After the Balance Sheet Date

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Corporate Resources on 24
September 2015. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the accounts or notes.
Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31
March 2015, the figures in the accounts and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to
reflect the impact of this information.

6. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure
recognised by the Committee in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the
resources that are specified by statutory provision as being available to the Committee to meet
future capital and revenue expenditure.

Adjustments for the year ended 31 March 2015:

Movement in
General Reserve Unusable Reserves

£000 £000

Adjustments primarily involving the
Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefits debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement(notel8) (1,111) 1,111
Adjustments primarily involving the
Accumulated Absences Reserve:
Amount by which officer remuneration charged
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement on an accruals basis is different
from remuneration chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements
(note 18) 29 (29)

Total Adjustments (1,082) 1,082
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6. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations (continued)

Adjustments for the year ended 31 March 2014:

Movement in
General Reserve Unusable Reserves

£000 £000

Adjustments primarily involving the
Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefits debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement(notel8) (1,102) 1,102
Adjustments primarily involving the
Accumulated Absences Reserve:
Amount by which officer remuneration charged
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement on an accruals basis is different
from remuneration chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements
(note 18) 30 (30)

Total Adjustments (1,072) 1,072

7. Transfers (from)Ito Specific Reserves

Transfers to and from the Specific Reserves during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Balance at Balance at 31
1 April 2014 Transfer out Transfer In March 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000

2015 Freedom Pass Re-issue
Reserve 1,800 (2,200) 400
Total 1,800 (2,200) 400

Transfers to and from the Specific Reserves during the year ended 31 March 2014.

Balance at Balance at 31
1 April 2013 Transfer out Transfer In March 2014

£000 £000 £000 £000

2015 Freedom Pass Re-issue
Reserve 1,400 - 400 1,800
Total 1,400 - 400 1,800

The 2015 Freedom Pass Re-issue Reserve was established by the Committee on
15 December 2011 to accumulate funds to meet the cost of the next Freedom Pass reissue
exercise in 2015.
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8. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2014115 2013114
£000 £000

Interest Payable 10 2
Interest and Investment Income (133) (167)
Net Loss on Pension Scheme Assets/Liabilities
(see note 9) 710 640

Total 587 475

9. Pensions

As part of their terms and conditions of employment, London Councils staff are eligible to participate
in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) which is a defined benefit statutory scheme
administered in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2007/08. The
scheme is contracted out of the State Second Pension and currently provides benefits based on
final salary and length of service on retirement. Changes to the LGPS came into effect from 1 April
2014 and any benefits accrued from this date will be based on career average revalued salary, with
various protections in place for those members in the scheme before the changes take effect.

The administering authority for the Fund is the London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA). The LPFA
Board oversees the management of the Fund whilst the day to day fund administration is
undertaken by a number of teams within the administering authority. Where appropriate some
functions are delegated to the Fund’s professional advisers.

On 1 May 2000, London Councils staff transferred into the LPFA Scheme as London Councils was
granted Admitted Body status. Prior to this date, the five predecessor bodies had different pension
arrangements for staff. The accumulated benefits of staff from the previous pension schemes have
been transferred to the LPFA scheme.

As administering authority to the Fund, the London Pensions Fund Authority, after consultation with
the Fund Actuary and other relevant parties, is responsible for the preparation and maintenance of
the Funding Strategy Statement and the Statement of Investment Principles. These should be
amended when appropriate based on the Fund’s performance and funding.

Employers’ contributions are set every three years as a result of the actuarial valuation of the Fund
required by the Regulations. The next actuarial valuation of the Fund will be carried out as at
31 March 2016 and will set contributions for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020. There
are no minimum funding requirements in the LGPS but the contributions are generally set to target a
funding level of 100% using the actuarial valuation assumptions. Based on the triennial valuation as
at 31 March 2013, the employers’ contribution towards the Future Service Rate was set at 12% of
pensionable pay for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017. In addition, there were annual
employers’ contributions to past service adjustments set at:

Year Employers
Contribution

£000
2014/15 214
2015/16 224
2016/17 234

On the Employer’s withdrawal from the plan, a cessation valuation will be carried out in accordance
with Regulation 64 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 which will determine the termination contribution
due by the Employer, on a set of assumptions deemed appropriate by the Fund Actuary.
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9. Pensions (continued)

In general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that the Employer is exposed to
a number of risks:

• Investment risk. The Fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, which have
volatile market values and while these assets are expected to provide real returns over the long-
term, the short-term volatility can cause additional funding to be required if a deficit emerges.

• Interest rate risk. The Fund’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on high quality
corporate bonds to discount future liability cashflows. As the Fund holds assets such as equities
the value of the assets and liabilities may not move in the same way.

• Inflation risk. All of the benefits under the Fund are linked to inflation and so deficits may emerge
to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation.

• Longevity risk. In the event that the members live longer than assumed a deficit will emerge in
the Fund. There are also other demographic risks.

In addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the London Pension Fund Authority Pension
Fund, there is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient assets to
cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining employers.

All of the risks above may also benefit the Employer e.g. higher than expected investment returns or
employers leaving the Fund with excess assets which eventually get inherited by the remaining
employers.

The LPFA, as administering authority, provided Barnett Waddingham LLP, an independent firm of
qualified actuaries with scheme membership information as at 31 March 2013 for all employees
within London Councils as part of the triennial valuation. Assets were allocated within the LPFA
Pension Fund based on these calculated liabilities. The triennial valuation as at 31 March 2073 was
the starting point for the ‘roll forward’ IAS1 9 valuations. In order to assess the actuarial value of the
LPFA Pension Fund’s liabilities as at 31 March 2015 attributable to London Councils, scheme
liabilities have been assessed by Barneft Waddingham LLP on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method, and estimate of pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on
assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc.

The individual committees’ share of assets and liabilities of the pension scheme are not separable,
therefore, all assets, liabilities, charges, returns and other costs have been allocated to each
committee in accordance with the proportion of employer contributions paid by the committee as a
percentage of the total paid by London Councils in the year. This approach results in an adjustment
to the Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair Value of Employer’s Assets as a result of the
difference between the percentage used to apportion the deficit at the start of the financial year and
the percentage used at the end of the financial year.
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9. Pensions (continued)

Financial Assumptions

The financial assumptions as at 31 March 2015:

Assumptions as at: 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
(% per annum) (% per annum)

RPI increases 3.3% 3.7%
CPI increases 2.5% 2.9%
Salary increases 4.3% 4.7%
Pension increases 2.5% 2.9%
Discount rate 3.4% 4.5%

These assumptions are set with reference to market conditions at 31 March 2015.

Our estimate of the duration of the Employer’s liabilities is 21 years.

The discount rate is the annualised yield at the 21 year point on the Merrill Lynch AA rated
corporate bond curve which has been chosen to meet the requirements of IASI9 and with
consideration of the duration of the Employer’s liabilities. This is consistent with the approach used
at the last accounting date.

The RPI increase assumption is set based on the difference between conventional gilt yields and
index-linked gilt yields at the accounting date using data published by the Bank of England,
specifically the 21 year point on the BoE spot inflation curve. This is consistent with the approach
used at the last accounting date.

As future pension increases are expected to be based on the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) rather
than RPI, we have made a further assumption about CPI which is that it will be 0.8% p.a. below RPI
i.e. 2.5% p.a. We believe that this is a reasonable estimate for the future differences in the indices,
based on the different calculation methods.

Salaries are then assumed to increase at 1.8% p.a. above CPI in addition to a promotional scale.
We applied a short term overlay for the period from 31 March 2013 to 31 March 2015 for salaries to
rise in line with CPI.

Demographic and Statistical Assumptions

A set of demographic assumptions that are consistent with those used for the funding valuation as
at 31 March 2013 have been adopted. The post retirement mortality tables have been constructed
based on Club Vita analysis. These base tables are then projected using the CMI 2012 Model,
allowing for a long term rate of improvement of 1.5% per annum.

The assumed life expectations from age 65 are:

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Retiring today:
Males 22.3 22.2
Females 25.3 25.2
Retiring in 20 years:
Males 24.7 24.5
Females 27.6 27.5
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9. Pensions (continued)

The following assumptions have also been made:

o Members will exchange half of their commutable pension for cash at retirement;

o Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which will be the pension
weighted average tranche retirement age; and

o No members will take up the option under the new LGPS to pay 50% of contributions for
50% of benefits.

The fair value of the pension scheme assets attributable to the London Councils Joint Committee at
31 March2015:

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
£000 % £000 %

Equities 17,865 43% 20,463 53%
LDI/Cashflow matching 3,091 8% 2,317 6%
Target return portfolio 11,904 29% 11,583 30%
Infrastructure 2,040 5% 1,544 4%
Commodities 383 1% 386 1%
Property 1,167 3% 1,158 3%
Cash 4,728 11% 1,158 3%

41,178 100% 38,609 100%

Quoted securities included within the assets values above have been measured at their bid value in
accordance with the Code. Under the Liability Driven Investment (LDI), RPI swaps are used to
hedge 25% of the Funds cash flow liability against inflation.

The analysis of the net value of the pension scheme assets and liabilities recognised in the Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2015 is as follows:

At31 March2015 At31 March2014
£000 £000

Fair value of employer assets 41,178 38,609
Present value of scheme liabilities (66,551) (54,734)
Net Liability (25,373) (16,125)
Present value of unfunded liabilities (76) (72)
Net Liability in Balance Sheet (25,449) (16,197)

The analysis of the amounts recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account for
the year ended 31 March 2015 is as follows:

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Service cost 1,168 1,200
Net interest on the defined liability 710 640
Administration expenses 58 55
Total 1,936 1,895



LONDON COUNCILS — JOINT COMMITTEE Page 59

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

9. Pensions (continued)

The reconciliation of the Defined Benefit Obligation at 31 March 2015 is as follows:

At31 March2015 At31 March2014
£000 £000

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation (54,806) (50,585)
Current service cost (1,168) (1,200)
Interest cost (2,448) (2,372)
Change in financial assumptions (9,000) (5,217)
Change in demographic assumptions - (225)
Experience loss on Defined Benefit Obligation (1) 4,552
Estimated benefits paid net of transfers 1,229 595
Contributions by scheme participants (438) (359)
Unfunded pension payments 5 5
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation (66,627) (54,806)

The reconciliation of the Fair Value of Employer’s Assets at 31 March 2015 is as follows:

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Opening Fair Value of Employer’s Assets 38,609 36,568
Interest on assets 1,738 1,732
Return on assets less interest 860 (413)
Other actuarial gains

- 225
Administration expenses (58) (55)
Contributions by employer 825 792
Contributions by scheme participants 438 359
Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of
transfers in (1,234) (599)
Closing Fair Value of Employer’s Assets 41,178 38,609

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out
above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each
change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant.
The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for
men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may
be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for
the scheme, ie on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types
of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used
in the previous period.
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9. Pensions (continued)

Sensitivity analysis:

£000 £000 £000
Adjustment to Discount Rate +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 65,260 66,627 68,024
Projected service cost 1,408 1,441 1,475

Adjustment to Long-term Salary Increases +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 66,798 66,627 66,457
Projected service cost 1,442 1,441 1,440

Adjustment to Pension Increases and
Deferred Revaluation +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 67,864 66,627 65,417
Projected service cost 1,474 1,441 1,408

Adjustment to Mortality Age Rating
Assumption +1 year None -1 year
Present value of total obligation 64,544 66,627 68,710
Projected service cost 1,397 1,441 1,485

The analysis of the re-measurements in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure for the year
ended 31 March 2015 is as follows:

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Return on plan assets in excess of interest 860 (413)
Other actuarial gains on assets 225
Change in financial assumptions (9,000) (5,217)
Change in demographic assumptions (225)
Experience (Ioss)/gain on defined benefit obligation (1) 4,552
Re-measurements (8,141) (1,078)

The projections for the year to 31 March 2016 is as follows:

31 March 2016
£000

Service cost 1,441
Net interest on the defined liability 851
Administration expenses 62
Total 2,354
Employers contribution 856
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in 2014/15:

Furniture and Leasehold Total
Equipment Improvements

£000 £000 £000
Cost

At 1 April 2014 1,027 1,681 2,708
Additions 114 172 286
Disposals
At 31 March 2015 1,141 1,853 2,994

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 April 2014 857 732 1,589
Chargefortheyear 51 239 290
Charge relating to
Disposals - -

At31 March2015 908 971 1,879

Net Book Value
At31 March2015 233 882 1,115

At31 March2014 170 949 1,119

Comparative movements in 2013/1 4:

Furniture and Leasehold Total
Equipment Improvements

£000 £000 £000
Cost

At 1 April 2013 1,894 1,673 3,567
Additions 93 8 101
Disposals (960) - (960)
At 31 March 2014 1,027 1,681 2,708

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 April 2013 1,685 493 2,178
Charge forthe year 132 239 371
Charge relating to
Disposals (960) - (960)
At 31 March 2014 857 732 1,589

Net Book Value
At31 March2014 170 949 1,119

At31 March2013 209 1,180 1,389

The capital expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment will be funded from revenue budgets in
line with the annual depreciation charge.
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

At 31 March 2015, the Committee had entered into contracts for the fit out of the new offices for
PATAS in 2015/16 estimated at740,000.

11. Intangible Assets

The intangible assets consist solely of purchased computer software. The Committee accounts for
its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an integral part of a particular
IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. The
carrying amount of computer software, accounted for as intangible assets, are amortised on a
straight line basis, starting after the year of acquisition, over the lower of 3 years or the length of the
software licence.

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Balance at start of year:
Gross carrying amount 22 20
Accumulated amortisation (7)
Net carrying amount at start of year 15 20
Additions 2
Disposals -

Amortisation for the period (7) (7)
Net carrying amount at end of year 8 15
Comprising:
Gross carrying amount 22 22
Accumulated amortisation (14) (7)

8 15

The capital expenditure on intangible assets will be funded from revenue budgets in line with the
annual amortisation charge.

There are no contractual commitments for the acquisition of Intangible Assets.

12. Short Term Debtors

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Central government bodies 817 823
Other local authorities 2,319 2,495
NHS bodies 1 3
Public corporations and trading funds 616 2,483
Other entities and individuals 1,546 2,292
Total 5,299 8,096

Included within the debtor balances above are amounts due from member boroughs (excluding
payments in advance and bad debt provision) of £2.23 million (2013/14: £2.513 million), payments
in advance of £1.098 million (2013/14: £2.106 million), a bad debt provision of £351,000 (2013/14:
£243,000) and other debtors of £2.322 million (2013/14: £3.72 million).
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13. Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Cash held by the Committee 1,701 2,646
Cash balances held by the City of London 17,516 11,840
Total 19,217 14,486

14 Leases

Operating Leases

The Committee uses leased properties under the terms of operating leases. The amounts paid
under these arrangements during the year amounted to £852,000 (2013/1 4: £803,000) and are
included in Premises costs in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Not laterthan one year 878 798
Later than one year and not later than five years 3,158 2,117
Later than five years 1,820 1,050
Total 5,856 3,965

15. Short Term Creditors

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Central government bodies (134) (130)
Other local authorities (9,622) (6,280)
NHS bodies (229) (192)
Public corporations and trading funds (730) (1,172)
Other entities and individuals (2,985) (3,954)
Total (13,700) (11,728)

Included within the creditor balances above are amounts due to member boroughs (excluding
receipts in advance) of £2.119 million (2013/14: £2.107 million), receipts in advance of8.041
million (2013/14: £5.241 million), accruals of £3.513 million (201 3/14: £2.718 million) and other
creditors of £27,000 (2013/1 4: £1 .662 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

16. Provisions

Property Lease
Provisions

£000
Balance at 1 April 2014 (438)

Additional Provisions made in 2014/15 (131)
Unwinding of discount (10)
Amounts used in 2014/1 5 -

Unused amounts reversed in 2014/15 14

Balance at 31 March 2015 (565)

Analysis of Total Provisions:

£000
Current (338)
Non-current (227)
Total Provision (565)

The Committee has established a provision for its contractual obligations included within its property
leases. The lease for Angel Square requires dilapidation and internal decoration work to be carried
out at the end of the extended lease term in July 2015.

The lease for Southwark Street requires internal and external decoration works to be carried out in
March 2016 and dilapidation works to be carried out in March 2021.

The lease for Chancery Exchange requires internal decoration work to be carried out every three
years commencing from March 2018 and general dilapidation work to be carried out at the end of
the lease in March 2025.

17. Usable Reserves

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

General Reserve 11,482 9,887
Specific Reserve - 1,800
Total 11,482 11,687

18. Unusable Reserves

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£000 £000

Pensions Reserve (25,449) (16,197)
Accumulated Absences Reserve (108) (137)
Total (25,557) (16,334)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

18. Unusable Reserves (continued)

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Committee accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service,
updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns
on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits
earned to be financed as the Committee makes employer’s contribution to the pension fund or
eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pension
Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current
employees and the resources the Committee has set aside to meet them. The statutory
arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be
paid.

2014115 2013114
£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at I April (16,197) (14,017)

Actuarial gains or losses on pension
assets and liabilities (8,141) (1,078)

Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefits debited or credited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement (1,941) (1,899)
Employer’s pensions contribution and
direct payments to pensioners payable in
the year 830 797

(1,111) (1,102)

Balance at 31 March (25,449) (16,197)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

18. Unusable Reserves (continued)

Accumulated Absences Reserve

The Accumulated Absences Reserve absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the
General Reserve from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g.
annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the
impact on the General Reserve is neutralised by transfers to or from the Reserve.

2014/15 2013114
£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April (137) (167)

Sefflement or cancellation of accrual
made at the end of the preceding year 137 167
Amounts accrued at the end of the
current year (108) (137)
Amount by which officer remuneration
charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis is different from
remuneration chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements 29 30

Balance at 31 March (108) (137)

19. Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities

2014115 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000

Deficit on Provision of Services (1,287) (91)
Adjusted for:
Current Service Cost Adjustment 401 462
Depreciation 290 371
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 7 7
Net loss on Pension Scheme
Assets/Liabilities 710 640
Provision for liabilities and charges 127 127
Decrease/(Increase) in Debtors 2,797 (1,911)
Increase in Creditors 1,972 2,008
Adjustments for non-cash
movements 6,304 1,704

Interest Payable 10 2
Interest and Investment Income (133) (167)
Adjustments for investing and
financing activities (123) (165)

Net cash flows from Operating
Activities 4,894 1,448
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

20. Cash Flow Statement — Investing Activities

2014115 2013/14
£000 £000

Interest Payable (10) (2)
Interest and Investment Income 133 167
Payment to Acquire Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets (286) (103)
Total (163) 62

21. Cash Flow Statement — Financing Activities

2014/15 2013I14
£000 £000

Finance Lease Capital Repayment (102)
Total (102)

22. Intragroup Transactions

The intragroup transactions excluded from the Consolidated Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement during the year are as follows:

2014115 2013/14
£000 £000

London Councils Limited recharge of Angel Square and
Chancery Exchange costs to TEC:
Expenditure 600 626
Income (600) (626)

23. Members’ Allowances

The Committee paid the following amounts to members of its Committees during the year.

2014115 201 3/14
£000 £000

Members’ Allowances 192 196
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

24. Officers’ Remuneration

The number of employees whose remuneration (including termination payments but excluding
employer’s pension contributions) was £50,000 or more in bands of £5,000 was:

Remuneration Bands Number of Employees
2014/15 2013/14

Restated
£000 £000

£50,000-54,999 5 7
£55,000 - £59,999 4 7
£60,000-64,999 2 2
£65,000-69,999 4 1
£70,000-74,999 3
£75,000-79,999 2 5
£80,000-84,999 2 1
£85,000-89,999 1
£90,000-94,999 2
£95,000 - £99,999
£105,000-109,999 1 1
£120,000-124,999 2 2
£145,000 -£149,999 1
£150,000 - £154,999 1

These amounts include payments made to Parking Adjudicators.

Prior year comparative restated to incorporate Chief Executive’s bonus for 2013/1 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

24. Officers’ Remuneration (continued)

2014115 2013114
£ £

Remuneration of highest paid Director 147,000 147,000
Remuneration of median member of staff 34,379 38,230
Multiple between the median member of staff and the
highest paid director 4.28 3.85

25. Termination Benefits

There were no termination payments included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for 2014/15 (2013/74: Nil).

26. External Audit Costs

The Committee incurred the following amounts in relafion to the audit of the Statement of Accounts
and Employers’ Association Annual Return:

2014I15 2013114
£000 £000

Fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in respect
of the audit of the Statement of Accounts: 54 54
Rebate received from Audit Commission (6) (7)
Fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the
certification of returns for the year 2 2
Fees payable in respect of other services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP during the year 49 20

99 69

27. Related Parties

The Committee is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Committee or to be controlled or
influenced by the Committee. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent
to which the Committee might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might
have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain with the Committee.

Member Boroughs

Member boroughs have direct control over the Committees activities through their membership of
London Councils Leaders’ Committee. The total value of income from subscriptions, contributions
and other charges paid to London Councils by its member boroughs during 2014/15 was £48,184
million (2013/14: £51 .291 million). The total value of expenditure on secondment fees, rent, rates,
professional fees and the distribution of grants paid to member boroughs during 2014/15 was
£4007 million (2013/1 4: £3.999 million). On 31 March 2015, the value of debtor balances owed by
member boroughs (including payments in advance) amounted to £2.289 million (2013/1 4: £2.495
million) and the value of creditor balances (including receipts in advance) owed to member
boroughs amounted to £9.621 million (2013/1 4: £6.28 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

27. Related Parties (continued)

Transport for London

A representative of Transport for London (TIL) sits on London Councils Transport and Environment
Committee and therefore has influence over the activities of the Committee. The total value of
income received from TfL in respect of subscriptions, contributions and charges during 2014/1 5 was
£1 0.063 million (2013/1 4: £11 .439 million). The total value of expenditure on charges and
reimbursement of Penalty Charge Notices during 2014/15 was £19,000 (2013/14: £17,000). On
31 March 2015, there were no debtor balances owed by TfL (2013/14: £1,000) and the value of
creditor balances owed to TfL (including receipts in advance) amounted to £366,000 (2013/1 4:
£281 ,000).

British Parking Association

London Councils has a contract to run the Parking on Private Lands Appeals (POPLA) service
which is funded by the British Parking Association (EPA). London Councils Director of Corporate
Services was a Director of the British Parking Association. The Director of Corporate Services
receives no remuneration for his appointment with the EPA. The total value of income received from
the BPA for running the POPLA service and room hire charges during 2014/15 was £922,000
(2013/1 4: £904,000). The total value of expenditure paid to the BPA for subscriptions and other
charges during 2014/15 was £840 (2013/1 4: £840). On 31 March 2015, the value of debtor
balances owed by the EPA amounted to £367,000 (2013/1 4: £371,000).

London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA)

London Councils’ pension scheme is administered by the LPFA and a member of London Councils
Leaders Committee sits on the LPFA board. The total value of expenditure paid to the LPFA for
pension payments and other charges during 2014/1 5 was £849,000 (2013/1 4: £790,000). On 31
March 2015, the value of creditor balances owed to the LPFA (including receipts in advance)
amounted to £18,000 (2013/14: £1,000).

Greater London Authority

A member of London Councils’ Transport and Environment Committee was also a member of the
Greater London Assembly. The total value of income received from the GLA for the operation of the
Road User Charging Appeals service and other charges during 2014/15 was £754,000 (2013/1 4:
£912,000). The total value of expenditure on room hire and other charges during 2014/15 was
£5,000 (2013/14: £10,000). On 31 March 2015, there were no debts owed by the GLA (2013/14:
£204,000) and the value of creditor balances owed to the GLA (including receipts in advance)
amounted to £100,000 (2013/14: £90,000).

28. Grant Commitments

The value of commitments in 2015/16 is £9.885 million. Included within these amounts is £2.38
million in respect of the European Social Fund (ESF) Co-Financing Programme. The Committee will
receive a contribution of1.19 million from ESF which represents 50% of the total grant expenditure
under the co-financing programme.

29. Concessionary fares

These accounts do not include the amount of £321 .596 million (2013/1 4: £308.747 million) paid
directly by member boroughs to Transport for London in respect of the Concessionary Fares
scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

30. Segmental Reporting

The information in the accounts is set out in the segments based on the Committee’s internal
management reporting. Therefore, no further disclosures are required.
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Appendix A — London Councils Grants Committee Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 2014115

2014115 2014/15 2014115 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost of Services
Direct Revenue Expenditure:
Grants to Voluntary
Organisations 9,608 (9,786) (178) 8,436 (8,723) (287)

9,608 (9,786) (178) 8,436 (8,723) (287)
Other Operating Expenditure:
Staff costs 455 (407) 48 447 (360) 87
Premises 47 (46) 1 47 (43) 4
Central SupportServices 147 (137) 10 163 (123) 40
Consultancy - (12) (12) - (11) (11)
One-off Payment to Boroughs 800 - 800 - - -

1,449 (602) 847 657 (537) 120

Net Revenue Cost of
Services 11,057 (10,388) 669 9,093 (9,260) (167)

Financing and investment
income and expenditure 26 3

DeficiU(Surplus) on
Provision of Services 695 (164)

Actuarial loss/(gains) on
pension assets/liabilities 579 (10)

Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure 579 (10)

Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure 1,274 (174)
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Appendix B — London Councils Transport and Environment Committee Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement 2014115

2014/15 2014115 2014115 2013/14 2013/14 2013114
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost of Services
Direct Revenue Expenditure:
Payments to operators 33,626 (35,355) (1,529) 33,774 (35,298) (1,524)
Managed service contract 3,144 (3,144) - 3,306 (3,306) -

Parking adjudication 1,400 (1,524) (124) 1,435 (1,311) 124
Payments to Northampton
County Court 2,451 (2,451) - 2,655 (2,655)
Reimbursement of parking
penalty notices to boroughs 14 (14) - 13 (13) -

Concessionary fares reissue 2,475 (1,942) 533 1,020 (833) 187
One off Paymentto Boroughs 170 - 170 - - -

43,480 (44,430) (950) 42,203 (43,416) (1,213)

Other Operating Expenditure
Staff costs 2,946 (2,312) 634 2,853 (2,329) 524
Premises 833 (654) 179 840 (686) 154
Central Support Services 1,999 (1,568) 431 1,341 (1,095) 246
Consultancy 52 (41) 11 9 (7) 2

5,830 (4,575) 1,255 5,043 (4,117) 926

Net Revenue Cost of Services 49,310 (49,005) 305 47,246 (47,533) (287)

Financing and investment
income and expenditure 179 139

DeficiU(Surplus) on Provision
of Services 484 (148)

Actuarial loss/(gain) on pension
assets and liabilities 2,739 (40)

Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure 2,739 (40)

Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure 3,223 (188)



LONDON COUNCILS — JOINT COMMITTEE Page 75

Appendix C — London Councils Joint Committee Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 2014115

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices.

2014115 2014/15 2014115 2013/14 2013114 2013/14
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost of Services
Direct Revenue Expenditure:
Direct Services to
Subscribers - - - 13 (13) -

Externally Funded Projects 6,744 (6,617) 127 6,919 (6,919)
GLE European contract 89 (89) - 75 (75)
Pension CIV Joint Committee 2 (2) - - -

Young Peoples Education
and Skills 636 (591) 45 663 (1,032) (369)
One-off Payment to Boroughs 339 - 339 825 - 825

7,810 (7,299) 511 8,495 (8,039) 456

Other Operating
Expenditure
Staff costs 3,666 (4,113) (447) 3,664 (3,874) (210)
Premises 1,474 (1,654) (180) 1,474 (1,559) (85)
Central Support Services 1,042 (1,168) (126) 1,293 (1,367) (74)
Consultancy 260 (292) (32) 298 (315) (17)

6,442 (7,227) (785) 6,729 (7,115) (386)

Net Revenue Cost of
Services 14,252 (14,526) (274) 15,224 (15,154) 70

Financing and investment
income 382 333

DeficiU(Surplus) on
Provision of Services 108 403

Actuarial losses/fgains) on
pension assets/liabilities 4,823 1,128

Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure 4,823 1,128

Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure 4,931 1,531
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Appendix C — London Councils Joint Committee Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 2014115 (continued)

a. Consolidation Adjustments

Included within the Net Revenue Cost of Services is expenditure of600,000 (2013/14: £626,000) and income of
£600,000 (201 3/14: £626,000) in respect of the premises costs of Angel Square and Chancery Exchange which are
incurred by London Councils Limited and recharged to the Transport and Environment Committee. These amounts are
removed on consolidation as follows:

2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 2013114 2013/14 2013/14
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Net Revenue Cost of Services 14,252 (14,526) (274) 15,224 (15,154) 70

Angel Square and Chancery
Exchange consolidation
adjustment (600) 600 - (626) 626

Amount included in
Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Statement 13,652 (13,926) (274) 14,598 (14,528) 70
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GLOSSARY

Accounting Policies
The specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the Council in preparing and
presenting the accounts.

Accruals
The concept that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money is
received or paid.

Actuarial Gains and Losses
Changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because either actual experience or events have
differed from the assumptions adopted at the previous valuation (experience gains or losses) or the
actuarial assumptions have been changed.

Actuary
An independent consultant who advises on the financial position of the Pension Fund.

Balance Sheet
A statement showing the position of the Council’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March in each year.

Budget
A forecast of the Committee’s planned expenditure. Budgets are reviewed during the course of the financial
year to take account of pay and price changes and other factors affecting the level or cost of services.

Capital Charges
A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of fixed assets used in the provision of services.
The charge includes depreciation (intended to represent the cost of using the asset) and any impairment
that may have occurred in the year of account.

Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds to and not merely maintains the
value of an existing fixed asset.

Carrying amount
The amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Change in Accounting Estimate
An adjustment of the carrying amount of an asset or a liability, or the amount of the periodic consumption of
an asset, that results from the assessment of the present status of, and expected future benefits and
obligations associated with, assets and liabilities. Changes in accounting estimates result from new
information or new developments and, accordingly, are not correction of errors.

Consistency
The principle that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from one period to
the next is the same.

Contingent
A condition which exists at the balance sheet date where the outcome will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s
control.

Creditors
Amounts owed by the Committee for goods received or services provided before the end of the accounting
period but for which payments have not been made by the end of that accounting period.
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Current Asset
An asset that will be consumed or cease to have value within one year of the reporting date. Examples are
inventories and debtors.

Current Expenditure
A general term for the direct running costs of local authority services, including employee costs and running
expenses.

Current Liability
An amount which will become payable or could be called in within the next accounting period, examples are
creditors and cash overdrawn.

Current Service Cost
The increase in the present value of a defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the
current period.

Curtailments
Curtailments arise as a result of the early payment of accrued pensions on retirement on the grounds of
efficiency, redundancy or where the employer has allowed employees to retire on unreduced benefits
before they would otherwise have been able to do so.

Debtors
Amounts due to the Committee before the end of the accounting period but for which payments have not
yet been received by the end of that accounting period.

Depreciation
The loss in value of a fixed asset due to age, wear and tear, deterioration or obsolescence.

Employee benefits
All forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

Events after the reporting period
Those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and
the date when the accounts are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: a) those that
provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (adjusting events after the
reporting period), and b) Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period (non-
adjusting events after the reporting period).

Fair Value
The amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction. In accounting terms, fair values are approximated by the present
value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Fixed Assets
Tangible assets that yield benefit to the Committee and its services for a period of more than one year.

Historical Cost
This is the cost deemed to be the carrying amount of an asset as at 1 April 2007 (i.e. b/f from 31 March

2007) or at the date of acquisition, whichever date is the later, and adjusted for subsequent depreciation or

impairment (if applicable).

Impairment
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below its carrying amount on the balance sheet.
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Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. It must be controlled
by the authority as a result of past events, and future economic or service benefits must be expected to flow
from the intangible asset to the authority. The most common class of intangible asset in local government
bodies is computer software.

Inventories
Assets that are: a) in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process b) in the
form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of services c) held for sale or
distribution in the ordinary course of operations, or d) in the process of production for sale or distribution.

Levies
A payment that a local authority is required to make to a particular body (a levying body) to meet specific
services.

Material
Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, influence
the decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of the accounts. Materiality depends on the
nature or size of the omission or misstatement judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size
of the item, or a combination of both, could be the determining factor.

Net Realisable Value
The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of non-operational
assets), less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset.

Operational Assets
Fixed assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the Committee in the direct delivery of services for
which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility.

Past Service Cost
The increase in the present value of Pension Fund liabilities arising in the current year from previous years’
service. Past service cost may be either positive (where benefits are introduced or improved) or negative
(where existing benefits are reduced).

Pensions Interest Cost
The expected increase during a period in the present value of Pension Fund liabilities which arises because
the benefits are due one year closer to settlement.

Post Balance Sheet Events
Those events, both favourable and unfavourable, which occur between the balance sheet date and the
date on which the Statement of Accounts is signed by the responsible financial officer.

Post-Employment Benefits
Employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the completion of employment.

Present Value of a Defined Benefit Obligation
The present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future payments required to settle the
obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.

Provision
An amount set aside in the accounts for liabilities or losses which are certain or very likely to occur but
uncertain as to the amounts involved or the dates on which they will arise.
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Prudence
The concept that revenue is not anticipated but is recognised only when realised in the form either of cash
or other assets and full and proper allowance is made for all known and foreseeable losses and liabilities.

Recharges
The collective term for accounting entries representing transfers of (or to cover) costs initially debited
elsewhere. They therefore comprise apportionments and charges.

Recoverable Amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of fair value less costs to sell (i.e. net selling price) and its
value in use.

Related Parties
Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period:
(i) one party has direct or indirect control of the other party; or
(ii) the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or
(iii) one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to an extent that the
other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interests; or
(iv) the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an extent
that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interest.

Related Party Transaction
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of
whether a price is charged. Related party transactions exclude transactions with any other entity that is a
related party solely because of its economic dependence on the authority or the government of which it
forms part.

Remuneration
All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expense allowances (as far as
those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any other benefits received other
than in cash. Pension contributions payable by the employer are excluded.

Reserves
Sums set aside to finance future spending for purposes falling outside the definition of a provision.
Reserves set aside for stated purposes are known as earmarked reserves. The remainder are unallocated
reserves, often described as balances.

Residual Value
The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that an entity would currently obtain from disposal of
the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the
condition expected at the end of its useful life.

Short-Term Employee Benefits
Employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that fall due wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service.

Specific Grants
These are grants paid by various government departments outside the main formula. They include ring
fenced grants and specific formula grants.

Specific Reserves
Reserves set aside for a specific purpose or a particular service or type of expenditure.
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Tangible Fixed Assets
Tangible assets that yield benefits to the Authority and the services it provides for a period of more than
one year.

Useful Life
The period over which benefits will be derived from the use of a fixed asset.

VAT
An indirect tax levied on most business transactions and on many goods and some services. In put Tax is
VAT charged on purchases. Output Tax is VAT charged in sales.




